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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\f S NS 2% ZZ-mF
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
FEn FET FET FET FET
Results (for the year ended 30 June) £& (EZAA=THLEE)
- Revenue ~ & 136,743 140,854 2,090,426 2,544,174 2,720,286
- Adjusted (loss)/profit* - (BB)/ B (m8%)+ (3,438) 1,822) 615,855 58,263 273,234
- Attributable (loss}/profit — [tk (BR) /& (1,643,888)  (1,756,580) (11,764) 8,927 2,148
- Dividends ke - - - - 15,133
- (Loss)/earnings per share -5k (EB) /2 (8.33) (8.90)% 0.06)2 0.05% 0.012
(in HK dollars) (WErit) (Z3-—NFZE
(2014 to 2017: Restated) R tEEET)
Financial Position (as at 30 June) BHMRR (RAA=1H)
- Cash and cash equivalents* -ReRREEE: 71,626 76,101 74,377 196,407 66,648
- Total assets -EELE 158,529 1,801,716 3,561,067 3,692,025 3,443,636
- Equity* — R 70,914 1,677197 3,433,797 3,438,988 3,195,547
Financial Ratios (as at 30 June) BELE(RXA=1A)
- Current assets/Current liabilities ~ —RBEE/FHEE 215 2775 53.30 15.01 20.83
- Assets/Equity* ~HE/Ew 2.24 1.07 1.04 1.07 1.08
- Sales/Assets -E%5/8E 0.86 0.08 0.59 0.69 0.79
- Gearing ratio -BRERLX 0.000 0.002 0.002 0.004 0.01
& Excluding impairment * KRt ARE
* Excluding overdrafts * TEREEX
Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in December R-ZT-NF+=ARMDEHMEL 2 HE
2014
s Adjusted pursuant to the share consolidation in April 2018 a BRZZE-NFOHARGEMHMIEL 2@
# Attributable to owners of the Company # NN A AFES
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Kantone Holdings Limited (the “"Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) and the
management of the Group, | would like to present the 2018
annual report of the Group.

2018 has been a pivotal year for the Group and the global
economy. Despite the clouds over many industries that
arose from the enormous uncertainties of Sino-US trade
friction, | am still delighted to report to all the shareholders
that, due to the tireless efforts of the Group’s management
team, the Group's business has made noticeable progress
on the promotion of smart communication solutions to
various sectors from which positive response has been
received. Moreover, uncertainties arising from the cultural
products inventories have been removed.

2018 is a year to retire the old and launch the new. Thanks
to the efforts of all staff, the Group is able to shed the
burden of its outmoded mindset and has successfully
developed our business with promising prospects.

| would like to list out the achievements of the Company's
management team in greater detail in the following
paragraphs.

Qualified Audit Opinion

Through our continuous effort with our auditors, we
completed a special audit on the assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2017 the report for which was published on
30 April 2018. This special audit report confirms the removal
of all the uncertainties which had led to the qualified audit
opinion regarding our inventories of the cultural products in
our 2017 annual report. Since the opening balances brought
forward from 1 July 2017 remain unchanged, the auditors
are obligated to partially retain their qualified opinion in their
2018 report in strict compliance with Hong Kong Standard
on Auditing which perhaps could be more easily understood
by accounting professionals. Such qualified opinion is
expected to be fully removed in the year 2019.
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CHAIRPERSON'S STATEMENT

Based on the experience gained in 2017 after due
consultation with the auditors, a professional party was
engaged to conduct scientific authentication work on
139 pieces of cultural products in order to scientifically
determine beyond any doubt the nature and substance of
the cultural products.

Expansion of our Technology Business

With the joint efforts of the management of Multitone
Electronics PLC, our U.K. subsidiary and our Multitone
Asia team, we have successfully established a foothold in
Mainland China and Hong Kong markets, which represents
a major breakthrough for the Group. The well-developed
smart security telecommunication technology of Multitone
is recognized by a number of security companies, whose
scope of service covers large-scale exhibitions, smart care
homes for the elderly, and other smart city oriented target
customers.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere
gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners and
the shareholders for their continuous support. At the same
time, | would give special thanks to all the employees of
the Group for their devotion and achievements under the
current challenging business environment. As always, we
are committed to exploring new business opportunities,
diversifying our business and creating higher benefits and
profits for our shareholders.

Ms. WONG Man Winny
Chairperson
Hong Kong

27 September 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS
Revenue

Kantone Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) reported a revenue
for the year under review of approximately HK$137 million
compared with approximately HK$141 million of the
previous year, a decrease of approximately 2.9 percent.

Loss attributable to Owners of the Company

The loss for the year under review is approximately
HK$1,644 million (2017: approximately HK$1,757 million).
Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
is approximately HK$1,644 million (2017: approximately
HK$1,757 million). The loss was mainly due to the
impairment losses recognised on the inventories during the
year. Loss per share is HK$8.33 (2017: HK$8.90).

Distribution Costs

The Group's distribution costs for the year were mainly
incurred by the principal subsidiary in United Kingdom -
Multitone Electronics PLC (“Multitone”), which recorded
distribution costs for the year under review of approximately
HK$28 million compared with approximately HK$26
million of the previous year, representing of an increase of
approximately 4.8 percent.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year increased
by approximately 5.1 percent to approximately HK$53
million from approximately HK$51 million of previous year.

Amortisation and Depreciation

Amortisation and depreciation costs for the year
decreased to approximately HK$9 million, compared with
approximately HK$16 million of previous year, due to
significant decrease in amortisation on development costs
for systems and networks as the development costs for
systems and networks were fully impaired during the year
ended 30 June 2017

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL RESULTS (continued)
Impairment Loss

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group recognised
an impairment loss on inventories of approximately
HK$1,635 million. Details of which are set out in the
"Review of Operations” section headed below.

Finance Costs

Finance costs for the year increased to approximately
HK$0.3 million from approximately HK$0.1 million of the
previous year.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

As stated in pages 62 to 71 of this report, the auditors of
the Company (the “Auditors”) have issued a disclaimer of
opinion on the Group's consolidated statements of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018
since the impairment of inventories of cultural products
for the year ended 30 June 2017 formed the opening
balances of the respective elements of the current year's
consolidated financial statements, any adjustments that
might have been found to be necessary in respect of
these item would have a significant effect in respect of
impairment loss on the inventories of cultural products, and
the other elements making up the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated
statement of cash flows and the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2018 and the prior year(s).

As mentioned above and in the chairperson’'s statement,
the disclaimer of opinion is solely related to the opening
balances of the impairment of inventories of cultural
products which is a consequential effect resulting from the
disclaimer of opinion on the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2017 The board of
the Company wishes to provide more information in relation
to the above item that result in the disclaimer of opinion
from the Auditors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgrading and reclassifications of cultural
products by the management of the Group

Background

For the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018,
as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, as a result of the inconsistencies in the
grading and classification of cultural products performed by
different experts as at 30 June 2017 and 2016, the current
management of the Group resolved to arrange another
team of cultural product and jewellery experts to conduct a
detailed inspection of the cultural products during the year
regarding their grading and classification in respect of the
year ended 30 June 2018. As disclosed in Note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group engaged the
GEM Appraisal Center of Peking University (1t 71t A& A &
TE #Lr) to conduct a scientific examination of 139 pieces of
cultural products, so as to better determine the nature and
substance of these cultural products. Based on their work,
further downgradings were identified. Accordingly, a further
impairment loss of HK$1,634,615,000 was recognised for
the year for the purpose of preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Subsequent to the publication of the Audited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at 31
December 2017 and for the purpose of the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018, the directors
of the Company unanimously decided to take the approach
of eliminating any lingering doubts on the nature of the
cultural products inventory so as to obtain a final and
uncontroversial conclusion for our inventory.

The directors of the Company are of the view that,
with their detailed exercise, the carrying amount net of
impairment recognised so far, reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position, is the best estimate of the
recoverable amount of the cultural products. The Auditors
believe the matter of the scope limitations referred to above
no longer have possible effect on the figure presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2018.

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgrading and reclassifications of cultural
products by the management of the Group

(continued)
Reason for the audit qualification

However, as the closing balance of the cultural products
as at 30 June 2017 is carried forward as the opening
balance for the current year, the Auditors consider that
any adjustments found to be necessary to the closing
balance as at 30 June 2017 may have a significant effect
on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

As such, the Auditors consider that the comparative
figures presented (i.e. the figures as at 30 June 2017) in
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 may
contain material misstatements and hence may not be
comparable with the figures.

As the disclaimer of opinion on the Company's loss,
changes in equity and cash flow for the year ended 30 June
2018 is related to the opening balances and corresponding
figures which is a consequential effect resulting from
the disclaimer of opinion on the Company's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017, the
Board understands, after discussion with the Auditors, the
possible consequential effect on the Group's consolidated
financial statements for year ending 30 June 2019,
resulting from the disclaimer of opinion on the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2018, according to Hong Kong Standard on Auditing
710 Comparative Information — Corresponding Figures
and Comparative Financial Statements, would possibly
be a modified opinion on the corresponding figures (i.e.
figures for the year ended 30 June 2018) of the Group's
consolidated financial statements for year ending 30 June
2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgrading and reclassifications of cultural
products by the management of the Group

(continued)
Proposed plan to address the disclaimer of opinion

Given that the impairment of inventories resulting from
downgrading and reclassifications of cultural products will
not form the basis of modified or qualified opinion for the
year ending 30 June 2019 (other than a modified opinion on
the corresponding figures for the year ended 30 June 2018),
the Board considers that no further action is required to
remove the disclaimer of opinion in this regard.

View of audit committee

The audit committee of the Company agreed with the
audit qualification and confirmed that it had critically
reviewed and agreed with the management’s position on
the judgmental areas concerning the above impairment
assessment.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
System Products

For our system products sector, our UK arms manifest the
major sources of income of our Group in that sector. When
our management together with the chief executive officer
and technical director of Multitone visited China recently
to conduct an indepth business study and to introduce the
background and products of Multitone, several customers
showed strong interest in doing business with us. More
details of that development are provided in the “Outlook”
section. So far, during the year under review, business and
contribution from system products have remained steady
and stable.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Cultural Products

Included in inventories of the Group as at 30 June
2018 were cultural products, including precious stones
and artifacts, of HK$4,360,000 (as at 30 June 2017:
HK$1,638,975,000) which were held for trading and resale
in the ordinary course of business.

All of such cultural products, totalling 143 pieces, have been
kept in a warehouse run by a worldwide security solution
company, which is an independent third party to the Group
since November 2017.

For the purpose of the audited condensed consolidated
statement of assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2017 (the “Audited Condensed Consolidated
Statement of Assets and Liabilities”) which was
announced by the Company on 30 April 2018, a team
of cultural product/jewellery experts (the “Current
Experts”) organised by the AEX#{EE 7%+ L “"China
Cultural Heritage Information and Consulting Center” (the
“Consulting Center”) and led by Ms. YANG Zhen Hua (5
E# ), who is a renowned expert in the field of jewellery
and stones, was engaged to perform an inspection on all
143 pieces of the cultural products owned by the Group, and
upon completion of their Stage 1 field work, they directed
us to arrange for scientific examination with the GEM
Appraisal Center of Peking University (1t Rt KB R E T
L) (the “Appraisal Center”) of selected representative
samples plus certain items on which doubts were cast by
them. According to the latest opinions from the Current
Experts, further downgradings and reclassifications were
required to be made on the cultural products as compared
to those as at 30 June 2017 Based on the findings
concerning the grading and classification of the cultural
products, another valuer, It R B Z{EERFTEBER A A,
who was arranged by the Consulting Center, reassessed
the market values of the inventories as at 31 December
2017. As a result of the final authentication report and
evaluation report, the Company had determined that their
net realisable values were way below their costs and the
shortfall resulted in impairment loss of approximately
HK$1,634 million for the six months ended 31 December
2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
Cultural Products (continued)

Subsequent to the publication of the Audited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities and for
the purpose of the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2018, the Directors unanimously decided
to take the approach of eliminating any lingering doubts on
the nature of the cultural products inventory so as to obtain
a final and uncontroversial conclusion for our inventory of
cultural products.

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements in this report, the Company engaged the
Appraisal Center to conduct a scientific examination of
139 items of cultural products, so that their nature and
substance can be established, following which grading and
classification of the cultural products can be confirmed.
Based on their findings concerning the grading and
classification of the cultural products, the Appraisal Center
issued their final report, tRMEEZEEEFHERA
7] has reassessed the market values of all 143 items of
cultural products as at 30 June 2018. The result of the final
authentication report and evaluation report indicate that
there is no material change in their net realisable values
between 31 December 2017 and 30 June 2018. Impairment
loss of approximately HK$1,635 million is recognised for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

In view of the disappointing drop in the value of the cultural
products, we will restructure a suitable plan to develop the
line of business on the cultural products and to proceed
along a more practicable approach in trading new items and
selling the cultural products that we have in hand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK

The business objectives of the Group are to develop its
business and achieve sustainable growth of its business.
The Group aims to achieve such objectives by pursuing the
following growth-oriented strategies: (i) broadening the
customer base of the systems sales, lease and licensing
business of the Group; and (ii) improving the trading
business of the Group. The followings are the proposed
strategic pattern of the Group oriented with the above
strategy:

Broadening the Customer Base

The Group will continue exploring opportunities for the
systems sales, lease and licensing segment and to broaden
the geographic base of customers, especially to the PRC
market.

Through a substantial subsidiary in Europe which specialized
in the design, manufacturing and supply of integrated
wireless communication systems and solutions for sale and
lease, the Group will continue to invest in new products
and market development, capitalizing on its position as the
market leader in critical messaging. In order to bring in
the advanced systems and products applicable to critical
messaging and smart cities, the Group has been working
on establishing its own base as well as cooperative
platforms in the PRC to bring in its systems and products
from Europe. The Group will continue to adapt and adopt
emerging technologies as well as developing its own
innovative products.

Meanwhile, the Group has been identifying other
telecommunication and internet technologies which would
benefit the Group’'s roadmap in Asia and the existing
business in Europe with a view to enlarging the Group's
coverage in the telecommunication and internet industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK (continued)
Broadening the Customer Base (continued)

Recently, the chief executive officer and the technical
director of Multitone visited several potential customers
and business partners in China - this roadshow gave us
an opportunity not only to introduce our background and
products, but also to get a much better understanding of
the requirement and needs of the customers in China.
Shortly after they returned from China, good news for
further business alignment with one of the customers
was received, where they were not only preparing to buy
our products, but also suggested going forward to form a
long term partnership with them to promote and sell our
products in China, especially the auction-related exhibition
and elderly care-related businesses. This promising
development happened to fit in with the business strategies
pattern of our Group, which we will keep working with our
management team in UK for the best business model.

Improving the Trading Business of the Group

The Group will re-build the new trading channels and
business networks including internet auctions for the
trading of cultural products, the Group's traditional security
and telecommunication equipment as well as other products
which would generate sustainable and reasonable profit
margin.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

In October 2017 the Board proposed to implement the
capital reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”),
details of which are set out in the circular of the Company
dated 9 November 2017 (the “Circular”) and note 27
to the consolidated financial statements in this report.
The shareholders of the Company approved the Capital
Reorganisation at the adjourned annual general meeting
of the Company held on 29 January 2018 and the Capital
Reorganisation became effective on 10 April 2018. For
details, please refer to the Circular and the announcements
of the Company dated 16 October, 9 November, 28
December 2017 1 January, 11 January, 13 January, 29
January, 20 February, 20 March and 9 April 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Financial Position and Gearing

The Group's financial position remained positive with a
reasonable gearing throughout the year ended 30 June
2018.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had approximately
HK$72 million (2017: approximately HK$76 million) liquid
assets made up of deposits, bank balances and cash.
Current assets were approximately HK$129 million
(2017: approximately HK$1,770 million) and current
liabilities amounted to approximately HK$60 million (2017:
approximately HK$64 million). With net current assets of
approximately HK$69 million (2017: approximately HK$1,707
million), the Group maintained a comfortable level of
liquidity. As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no borrowings
(2017: total borrowings of approximately HK$3.6 million)
and a zero gearing ratio (2017: the gearing ratio of the
Group, defined as the Group’s total borrowings to equity
attributable to owners of the Company, was approximately
0.002).

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no borrowings (2017:
total borrowings comprised bank loans of approximately
HK$3.6 million, which was repayable within one year).
Finance costs for the year was approximately HK$0.3 million
(2017: approximately HK$0.1 million).

Treasury Policy

The Group is committed to manage its financial resources
prudently and to maintain a positive liquid financial position
with reasonable gearing. The Group finances its operation
and business development by a combination of internally
generated resources, capital market instruments and
banking facilities.

All the borrowings were used by subsidiaries of the
Company bearing interest at floating rates and were
denominated in their local currencies. As such, the currency
risk exposure associated with the Group’s borrowings was
insignificant.

The Group does not engage in any speculative derivatives
or structured product transactions, interest rate or foreign
exchange speculative activities. It is the Group's policy to
manage foreign exchange risk through matching foreign
exchange income with expense and, where exposure
to foreign exchange is anticipated, appropriate hedging
instruments will be used.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

(continued)
Capital Commitments

The Group did not have any capital commitments as at 30
June 2018.

Charges

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with
the aggregate carrying amounts of approximately HK$10.9
million have been pledged as securities for the defined
benefit retirement scheme of certain subsidiaries operated
in UK.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
charges on assets as at 30 June 2018.

Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

Significant investments held, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, and future plans
for material investments or capital assets

There were no significant investments held, no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures during the year ended 30 June 2018.

There is no plan for other material investments or additions
of capital assets as at the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. WONG Man Winny, aged 44, has been an executive
Director and the Chairperson of the Board since October
2017. She is currently an executive director and the
Chairperson of the board of directors of Champion
Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion”), which is the
holding company of the Company holding 64.94% of the
issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report
and the issued shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Ms. Wong served as the licensed
representative of Business Securities Limited from 2003
to 2004. She has over 10 years experience in corporate
management and investment.

Mr. LIU Ka Lim, aged 62, has been an executive Director
and an authorised representative of the Company since
October 2016. He has over 30 years of professional
experience in the field of finance and accounting. He is a
fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is also a member of the
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Mr. Liu is
currently an executive director of Champion and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. During March 2004
to August 2006, Mr. Liu was the Chairperson of Galileo
Capital Group Limited (now known as Sun International
Group Limited), a company listed on the GEM Board of
the Stock Exchange. During October 2003 to March 2006,
Mr. Liu was the Chairperson of Wonderful World Holdings
Limited (now known as Good Resources Holdings Limited),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
During January 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Liu was a non-
executive director of United Pacific Industries Limited (now
known as Superactive Group Company Limited), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

R=—ZZF—\EAA=++tH ASAT 27 SEPTEMBER 2018

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica, aged 38, has been a non-
executive Director since July 2017 Ms. To is currently a
Barrister-at-Law. Ms. To holds a postgraduate certificate
in laws from University of Hong Kong and a graduate
diploma in English and Hong Kong law from Manchester
Metropolitan University. Ms. To was admitted as a barrister
of the High Court of HKSAR in 2009. Ms. To has about 9
years of experience in the legal field. Ms. To is currently
a non-executive director of Champion and a director of
Multitone.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai, aged 54, has been an independent
non-executive Director since October 2017. Mr. Leung
has extensive experience in accounting and finance. Mr.
Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of
Champion. Mr. Leung served as a financial controller and
company secretary of a private company during 2003 to
2006. From 1996 to 2003, he served various roles including
financial controller, company secretary and finance manager
in several listed companies within the ITC Corporation
Limited (now known as PT International Development
Corporation Limited) (stock code: 372), the shares of which
are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also
worked as a senior accountant during 1992 to 1996 in
Hopewell Holdings Limited (stock code: 54), the shares
of which are listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Leung had also been an independent non-executive
director of China Aluminum Cans Holdings Limited (stock
code: 6898), the shares of which are listed on Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, during the period from June 2013 to
June 2016. Currently, Mr. Leung is the chief financial officer
and company secretary of Da Ming International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1090), the shares of which are listed
on Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Leung received
a Bachelor of Arts degree in Accountancy from the City
University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Ms. CHUNG Sau Wai Ada, aged 46, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
since July 2017 Ms. Chung has extensive experience in
auditing and accounting. Ms. Chung held various senior
positions in professional firms and commercial field,
including accounting manager of a listed company in Hong
Kong. Ms. Chung holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from York
University and a diploma in accounting from The School of
Professional and Continuing Education of The University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Chung is a member of the Chartered
Professional Accountants of British Columbia, Canada.

Mr. Clayton IP, aged 40, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company since
June 2017 Mr. Ip is a business entrepreneur and has
over 10 years of experience in corporate administration,
management and investment. Mr. Ip is specialised in the
printing and self storage industry.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 49, has been the company secretary
of the Company since October 2016, and he is also the
chief financial officer and an authorised representative
of the Company. Mr. Chan has 26 years of experience in
accounting and financial management. Mr. Chan holds
a master degree in Professional Accounting awarded by
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
an associate of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Chan is currently the chief financial
officer, company secretary and an authorised representative
of Champion and a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Stephen Alan GENTRY, aged 62, is the Group's
Head of International Business and the Chief Executive
of Multitone, a member company of the Group, with
responsibilities for formulating the overall policy and
development strategy for the Group's international
operations. He is also a director of several of the Group's
subsidiaries. He joined the Group in 1988 as financial
accountant of the UK operations, and has considerable
experience working for the Group's various European and
American operations. He has been the Chief Executive of
Multitone since 2003 and is a member of the Institute of
Directors.

Mr. Frank ROTTHOFF, aged 55, is the Managing Director
of the Group's German operations. He joined the Group in
2008 and has extensive experience in sales and marketing
management in the electronics industry. His earlier career
covered international sales of industrial machinery and
process technology before entering the semiconductor
sector in 1989. He was responsible for the sales and
marketing of a leading European distributor of electronic
components before joining the Group.

Mr. Terry John MILLER, aged 79, has been a consultant
of the Group since March 2017. Previously, he held
the position of Deputy Chief Executive at Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited, and was the Regional Director,
Asia/Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC. He is a fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and is the former president of the Hong Kong Institute of
the International Association of Financial Executives.
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The Directors would like to present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in trading of goods
including telecommunication equipment and licensing
(including sales of systems products, software licensing
and customisation and provision of services and leasing
of systems products, including smart communication
solutions) and cultural products.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business objectives of the Group are to develop its
business so as to achieve sustainable growth. The Group
aims to achieve such objectives by pursuing the following
growth-oriented strategies: (i) broadening the customer
base of the systems sales, lease and licensing business of
the Group; and (ii) improving the trading business of the
Group.

A review of the businesses of the Group during the year
based on the financial indicators and a discussion on the
Group's future business development are provided in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
in this report. No important event affecting the Group has
occurred since the end of the year under review.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group's financial condition, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number of
risks and uncertainties. The followings are the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be other
risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown below
which are not known to the Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Business Risk

The Group conducts business globally and faces business
risks including reputation risks, investment and acquisition
risks, taxation risk and corporate responsibility and
sustainability risks. The Board meets regularly and reviews
the investment and expansion strategies, business plan,
financial results, and key performance indicators of the
Group to ensure that the business risks are controlled and
managed, and potential risks can be identified.

Market Risk

Loss of market share is a market risk encountered by the
Group. The financial position of the Group may be adversely
affected if it fails to respond to market changes resulting to
loss of business to opponents. The Group has professional
sales and client management teams and is committed
to ensure that the existing clients and business will be
retained through competitive quality services and pricing

policy.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems or from
external events. Responsibility for managing operational
risks basically rests with every function at divisional and
departmental levels. The Group recognises that operational
risks cannot be eliminated completely and that it may not
always be cost effective to do so.

Key functions in the Group are guided by their operating
procedures, limits of authority and reporting framework. The
Group will identify and assess key operational exposures
from time to time and report such risk issues to senior
management as early as possible so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Financial Risk
The financial risk management of the Group are set out in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Legal Risk

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits
or adverse judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively
affect the operations or financial conditions of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group puts great emphasis in environmental protection
and energy conservation to enhance the capacity of
sustainable development and undertake relative social
responsibility. Through the establishment of an ever-
improving management system, energy conservation and
environment protection were strongly promoted, leading to
the remarkable achievement of environmental management.

Pursuant to Rule 13.91 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),
the Company will publish an Environmental, Social and
Governance (“"ESG") Report within three months after the
publication of this annual report in compliance with the
provision set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix 27
to the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELATED LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, in particular, those
have a significant impact on the Group. Save as otherwise
disclosed and as far as the Board and management are
aware, the Group has complied with all related laws
and regulations in all material aspects which may have
significant impact on the business and operation of the
Group during the year under review.
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RELATIONSHIP OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Company believes that employees, customers
and business partners are the key to have continuous
sustainable development. The Company is committed
to be people-oriented and build up good relationship
with its employees. The Group provides on-the-job
training and development opportunities to enhance its
employees’ career progression. Through different trainings,
staff's professional knowledge in corporate operations,
occupational and management skills are enhanced. The
Group also values the health and well-being of its staff.
In order to provide employees with health coverage, its
employees are entitled to medical insurance with body
check benefits. The Group also works together with its
business partners to provide high quality products and
services to achieve the goal of sustainable development and
contribution to the society.

There was no material and significant dispute between the
Group and its distributors and/or customers during the year
under review.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June
2018 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on page 72 and
in the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017:
nil). Capital will be reserved for the expansion of the
Group's business and to capture investment opportunities
arising in the future. There is no arrangement that a
shareholder of the Company has waived or agreed to waive
any dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year under review are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 75 and note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE OF THE
COMPANY

Detail of the distributable reserves of the Company as
at 30 June 2018 are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
184.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Company did not make any charitable donation for the
two years ended 30 June 2017 and 2018.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors:

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)
(appointed on 19 October 2017)

Mr. LIU Ka Lim

Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson)
(resigned on 15 August 2017)

Ms. LEI Lei (resigned on 7 July 2017)

Mr. LIN Xiang (resigned on 7 July 2017)

Non-executive Director

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica (appointed on 7 July 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai (appointed on 10 October 2017)
Ms. CHUNG Sau Wai Ada (appointed on 11 July 2017)
Mr. Clayton IP

Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han (resigned on 10 October 2017)
Mr. YANG Rusheng (resigned on 11 July 2017)

In accordance with article 87(1) of the articles of association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), one-third
of the Directors for the time being, (or if their number is not
a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation so that each
Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years.

In accordance with article 86(3) of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board at any
time either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

None of the Directors has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation) as at
the date of this report.
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1)
OFTHE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes
in information of the Directors are set out below:

(a)  The director emolument for Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica,
a non-executive Director, was renewed to HK$40,000
per month with effect from 1 March 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in the
Directors’ information required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND DIRECTORS’
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Each of the Company and its ultimate holding company,
Champion, has a share option scheme under which eligible
persons, including directors of the Company, Champion or
any of their respective subsidiaries, may be granted options
to subscribe for shares of the Company and Champion
respectively.

Details of the share option schemes of the Company
and Champion are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.

No share option has been granted since the adoption of the
share option schemes of the Company and Champion.

Other than the share option schemes described in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time
during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, holding
companies or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

None of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") as at 30 June
2018 as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set forth under
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company, its subsidiaries, holding company
and any of their subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director or his/ her connected entity had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business apart
from the Group's business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of
the Group.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Related Party
Transactions” below, no contract of significance has been
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Group did not conduct any
non-exempt connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group had entered
into certain transactions with parties which were regarded
as “Related Parties” under the applicable accounting
principles. Details of those related party transactions are
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
The transactions which are considered as connected
transactions under the Listing Rules are further disclosed in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PERSONS WHO HAVE AN INTEREST OR
SHORT POSITION WHICH IS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER DIVISION 2 AND 3 OF PART

XV OF THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2018, the following person (other than the
interests of the Directors or chief executive of the Company
disclosed in the paragraph headed "“Directors’ interests
and short positions in securities” above) had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:
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Approximate
percentage*

Number of the issued
of shares share capital
Name of shareholders Capacity HERITREAZ
REARE 56 R&OEE BABE Dk
Champion Beneficial owner 128,137,958(L) 64.94%
HoE EmlEA A
Guangdong Finance Limited Person having a security interest in 128,137,958(L) 64.94%
(Note 1) shares
BREEGRAT (H:F71) RRGOFPEEZES D2 AL
Easy Fame Investment (HK) Limited Interest of controlled corporation 128,137,958(L) 64.94%
(Note 1)
IBecic & (BB)GRAE (Mit1) RESEEER
Lin Ho Man (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 128,137,958(L) 64.94%

EER (KaE1) A2 A E R
Note: The letter “"L" denotes the shareholder’s long position in the
shares of the Company.

* The percentage represents the number of shares of the
Company involved divided by the number of the Company’s
issued shares as at 30 June 2018.
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PERSONS WHO HAVE AN INTEREST OR
SHORT POSITION WHICH IS DISCLOSEABLE
UNDER DIVISION 2 AND 3 OF PART

XV OF THE SFO AND SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note:

1. 128,137,958 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 64.94% of the issued share capital of the
Company, owned by Champion were pledged to Guangdong
Finance Limited under a facility agreement between
Champion and Guangdong Finance Limited. According to
the disclosure of interests forms of substantial shareholders
filed on 6 July 2017 Guangdong Finance Limited is owned
as to 99% by Easy Fame Investment (HK) Limited, which is
in turn wholly owned by Lin Ho Man.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2018, according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who
had any interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS,
WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

The Company had no outstanding convertible securities,
options, warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June
2018 and there had been no exercise of any convertible
securities, options, warrants or similar rights during the
year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed the Company's listed securities during the year
ended 30 June 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group sells its products to customers, some of
whom act as its distributors, and purchases materials and
components from suppliers, some of whom act as its
merchandisers.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, sales to the Group's five
largest customers, on individual entity basis, accounted
for approximately 20.2% of the total revenue for the year
and sales to the largest customer, on individual entity
basis, included therein amounted to approximately 4.7%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers, on
individual entity basis, accounted for approximately 70.7%
of the total purchases for the year and purchases from the
largest supplier, on individual entity basis, included therein
amounted to approximately 32.1%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders, which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital,
had any interest in the share capital of the five largest
customers or suppliers of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2018, the Group employed about 186 staff
around the globe. Staff costs for the year ended 30 June
2018 were HK$76 million (2017: HK$76 million).

The remuneration of the employees of the Group is
determined with reference to market terms and the
performance, qualifications and experience of the individual
employee.

Emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee of the
Company after considering factors such as the Company's
operating results, individual performance, salaries paid
by comparable companies, and time commitment and
responsibilities of the relevant director.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of
this report, there is sufficient public float of not less than
25% of the Company's issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and
profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts, provided that this
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any Directors.
Such permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the
Directors was in force during the year and remained in force
as of the date of this annual report.

The Group has taken out a Directors’ liability insurance to
cover Directors’ liabilities to third parties. During the year
ended 30 June 2018, no claims were made against the
Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in this
report, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing Shares, or that require the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares, were entered into by the Company
during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration paid by the Group to the
Directors and senior management of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2018 are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as auditor of the
Company on 16 August 2016. On 17 August 2016, the
Company appointed Moore Stephens CPA Limited as auditor
for the year ended 30 June 2016. On 29 January 2018,
Moore Stephens CPA Limited was re-appointed as auditor of
the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Moore
Stephens CPA Limited as auditor of the Company for the
year ending 30 June 2019.

By order of the Board

Ms. WONG MAN WINNY
CHAIRPERSON

Hong Kong
27 September 2018
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INTRODUCTION

The Board and the senior management of the Company
are committed to establishing good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance
practices has always been one of the Group's goals. The
Company believes that good corporate governance provides
a framework that is essential for effective management,
successful business growth and a healthy corporate culture,
thereby leading to the enhancement of shareholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, sound internal controls,
transparency and accountability to all shareholders. By
applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the Group
believes that its accountability and transparency will be
improved thereby instilling confidence to shareholders and
the public. The Company has been conducting its business
according to the principles of the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code"”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules during the year ended 30 June 2018.

Throughout the financial year ended 30 June 2018, the
Group has complied with the code provisions in the CG
Code save for the deviation of code provisions A.4.1 and
E.1.2 of the CG Code, details of which will be explained
in the relevant paragraphs in this report. The Board will
review its corporate governance practice annually and
make necessary changes if necessary. Meetings were held
throughout the year under review and where appropriate,
circulars and other guidance notes were issued to Directors
and senior management of the Group to ensure that they
were aware of issues regarding corporate governance
practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's business, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of
the Company including the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, the setting of objectives, annual budgets and
overall strategies, the entering into material transactions,
appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated
to the senior executives and the management. Their
responsibilities include the implementation of decisions
made by the Board, the co-ordination and direction of
day-to-day operation and management of the Company in
accordance with the management strategies and plans
approved by the Board. The Board receives full support
from senior executives to discharge its responsibility.
Prior approval has to be obtained from the Board before
entering into any significant transactions. The statement of
the auditors of the Company in relation to their reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 62 to
71 of this report.

Composition

The composition of the Board during the year and up to the
date of this report was as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson)
(appointed on 19 October 2017)

Mr. LIU Ka Lim

Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson)
(resigned on 15 August 2017)

Ms. LEI Lei (resigned on 7 July 2017)

Mr. LIN Xiang (resigned on 7 July 2017)

Non-executive Director

Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica (appointed on 7 July 2017)
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Man Fai (appointed on 10 October 2017)
Ms. CHUNG Sau Wai Ada (appointed on 11 July 2017)
Mr. Clayton IP

Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han (resigned on 10 October 2017)
Mr. YANG Rusheng (resigned on 11 July 2017)

One of the independent non-executive Directors has
appropriate accounting and financial management expertise.
The number of independent non-executive Directors is more
than one-third of the Board. Biographical details of the other
Directors are set out in the paragraph headed "Directors
and senior management profile” on pages 19 to 22 of this
report.

The presence of three independent non-executive Directors
is considered by the Board to be a reasonable balance
between executive and non-executive Directors. The
Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide
adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and of the Group. The independent non-
executive Directors provide to the Group with a wide
range of expertise and experience so that independent
judgement can be exercised effectively. They have also
participated in Board meetings and general meetings,
dealt with potential conflicts of interest, served on audit
committee, human resources and remuneration committee
and nomination committee of the Company and scrutinized
the Group's performance and reporting. Through their active
participation, the management process of the Company can
be critically reviewed and controlled.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Composition (continued)

The Directors have distinguished themselves in their
field of expertise, and have exhibited high standards of
personal and professional ethics and integrity. All Directors
have given sufficient time and attention to the Company's
affairs. The Board believes that the ratio between executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors is
reasonable and adequate to perform check and balance
function over the Board in the decision-making process.

The Board is responsible for the appointment of new
Director and nomination for re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting of the Company. Under the
Articles of Association, the Board may from time to time
appoint a Director either to fill a vacancy or as an addition
to the Board. Any new Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office until the next annual general meeting after his/her
appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election at such
meeting.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the
roles of Chairman and Chief Executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the
Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

The role of Chairman is being performed by Ms. Wong
Man Winny, who is also being an executive Director, and
she is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
development of the Group and the effective functioning and
leadership of the Board.
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THE BOARD (continued)
Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer (continued)

The Company has no such title as the Chief Executive
Officer and therefore the daily operation and management
of the Company has been monitored by the executive
Directors as well as the senior management.

The Board is of the view that although there is no Chief
Executive Officer, the balance of power and authority is
ensured by the operation of the Board, which comprises
experienced individuals and who meet from time to time to
look after the operations of the Company.

INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and each of them has declared fulfilment of all the
guidelines for assessing independence in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as
such in all corporate communications containing the names
of the Directors. In addition, there is no material relationship
between Board members.
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DEVIATION FROM THE CG CODE

Throughout the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company has
complied with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, save and except the following deviations:

(a)

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, all
non-executive Directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. Whilst the non-
executive Directors are not appointed for a specific
term, the term of office for non-executive Directors
is subject to retirement from office by rotation and
is eligible for re-election in accordance with the
provisions of the Articles of Association. At each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, (or if their number is
not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
so that each Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years. As such, the Company
considers that such provision is sufficient to meet the
underlying objectives of CG Code.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman of the Board should attend the annual
general meeting. Due to other unexpected events,
Ms. Wong Man Winny, the Chairperson of the Board,
was out of town and was unable to attend the annual
general meeting held on 28 December 2017 and the
adjourned annual general meeting held on 29 January
2018.

(b)
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS

The Board regularly meets in person or through other
electronic means of communication at least four times
every year to determine the overall strategic direction,
objectives and to approve interim results, annual results or
other significant matters. Draft notice and agenda for regular
meetings are provided to all Directors for comments and
inclusion of any matters for deliberation at the meetings.
Apart from holding regular meetings, senior management
from time to time provides to the Directors information on
activities and development of the business of the Group.
The company secretary assists the Chairperson in preparing
agenda for the meetings and ensures that all applicable
rules and regulations in connection with the meetings
are observed and complied with. Except for ad hoc Board
meetings to deal with urgent issues, the agenda and Board
papers are then sent to all Directors at least 3 days prior
to the meeting. The company secretary also takes detailed
minutes, keeps records of matters discussed and decision
resolved at the meetings.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'

MEETINGS (continued)

Directors’ attendances in the general meetings and the
meetings of the Board, audit committee, human resources
and remuneration committee, nomination committee and
investment committee held during the year are set out

below:

EFXEER

REERN BOZERAEREFTS.

TXRERBME
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

g ANEREFME

EggRcEFHEBEREINMT:

RRERRE (&)

EREE

g REZEEMREZR

Human
Resources and Adjourned
Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
Name of Directors to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend
174 gitE/
L:74 B,/ AREHRHEEZ L 74 L 74 BitiE/ AREREREZ
REREEZ AREREEZ ADERR GEREEZ GEREEZ cERLEEZ REBEXE
ESpg ES983 ENZESRE FHWZE993 REZE9e3 REZEeR RRAEAE Ee
Executive Directors
HTES
Ms. WONG Man Winny 5/7 - - - = 01 0/1
(Chairperson) (appointed on
19 October 2017)
BEHRL(FE)
(RZZ—+45+ATNIE
BZ1E)
Mr. LIU Ka Lim 14/14 - - - 2/2 il 1
BERRAE
Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson) il - - - - - -
(resigned on 15 August 2017)
BE%E(FE) (RZE—tF
NA+RBER)
Ms. LEI Lei 0/0 - - - - - -
(resigned on 7 July 2017)
BERL
(RZZ—+t5+AtHEAE)
Mr. LIN Xiang 0/0 - - - - - -
(resigned on 7 July 2017)
M EE
(RZE—tFtAtAHME)
Non-executive Director
FETES
Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica 13/14 - - - - 11 1

(appointed on 7 July 2017)
RFFRT (RZE—+&F
tAEREZA)

NFFH BREEARAA
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'

MEETINGS (continued)

EEEEERNRERERE 4

Human
Resources and Adjourned
Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual Annual
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/
Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible Eligible
Name of Directors to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend to attend
it/ %94
it/ Bt/ ARERHEEZ B/ BiHE/ BitiE/ REREREZ
REREEZ REREREZ ADERKR REREEZ RERLEEZ RERLEEZ RRBEXA®
E=pg EZESE ENEESEE VMZEESE REZE8SR REZESEE RREFAE He
Independent Non-executive
Directors
BUFHTES
Mr. LEUNG Man Fai 9/9 2/2 212 0/0 - 7 1”1
(appointed on 10 October 2017)
ANBEE (K225
+A+REZA)
Ms. CHUNG Sau Wai Ada 13/14 3/3 4/4 2/2 2/2 0/1 1"
(appointed on 11 July 2017)
BARELT (RZT—F
tA+—HEZE)
Mr. Clayton IP 13/14 3/3 4/4 22 - 01 0/1
BRERE
Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han 5/5 1mn 2/2 2/2 - - -
(resigned on 10 October 2017)
MEMLT (RZT—+5
+A+RET)
Mr. YANG Rusheng 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 - - -

(resigned on 11 July 2017)
BUELE (R-B—1F
T A+—B&A)
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS (continued)

During regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss
and formulate the overall strategies of the Group, monitor
financial performances, review the annual and interim
results, and make decisions on significant matters. The
execution of daily operational matters is delegated to the
senior executives of the Group.

The company secretary records the proceedings of each
Board meeting in detail by keeping minutes, including
the record of all decisions resolved by the Board together
with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if
any). Draft Board minutes are circulated to all Directors
for comment and approval as soon as practicable after
the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any
reasonable time upon request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information
at all times and they may make further enquiries if it is
necessary to do so.

They also have unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary, who is held responsible
for providing Directors with Board papers and other related
materials. The company secretary also ensures that proper
Board procedures are followed and that all applicable laws
and regulations are complied with. If the Directors consider
necessary and appropriate, they may retain the service of
independent professional advisers at the Group's expense.

In case where a conflict of interest arises involving a
substantial shareholder or a Director, such matter will be
resolved in a physical meeting instead of passing written
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors with no
conflict of interest will be present at meetings to deal with
such conflict issues.

The Board committees, including the audit committee,
the human resources and remuneration committee, the
nomination committee and the investment committee, have
all adopted the applicable practices and procedures used in
Board meetings.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND SHAREHOLDERS'
MEETINGS (continued)

The annual general meeting and other extraordinary general
meetings of the Company are the primary forum for
communication with its shareholders and for shareholders’
participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at
meetings on their behalves if they are unable to attend.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Company held
its annual general meeting on 28 December 2017 and
adjourned annual general meeting on 29 January 2018.
Details of major items discussed in that general meetings
are set out in the circular of the Company dated 9
November 2017.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

All Directors, including non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors, must keep abreast
of their collective responsibilities as Directors and of
the business of the Group. As such, the Group provides
a comprehensive and formal introduction to each newly
appointed Director upon his/her appointment. Briefings and
orientations are provided so as to ensure that new Directors
are familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other
duties as a Director as well as the business and governance
practices of the Group. Such programmes are tailor made
for each Director taking into account their background and
expertise.
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

(continued)

The Company is committed to arranging and funding
suitable training to all Directors for their continuous
professional development. During the year ended 30 June
2018 and up to the date of this report, all Directors engaged
in business activities in their respective fields as continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contributions
to the Board remain informed and relevant, and they
participated in the following training:

EE2EIIRE )

AARBORERBESZHEZERRLHEGE
MBI RRHEAEREE - RBEE_F - \F XA
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FBEEARTBHHEESHELRER  REEF2H
ZEINIT

Type of Training (Note)

Name of Directors E=psg @R (H7)
Executive Directors HTES
Ms. WONG Man Winny (Chairperson) BRI (£RE) A B
(appointed on 19 October 2017) (RZF—tF+ATNAEZHF)
Mr. LIU Ka Lim BERTE A,
Mr. CHENG Yang (Chairperson) BHEE(LE) A,
(resigned on 15 August 2017) (R=F—tF/ATHARF)
Ms. LEI Lei (resigned on 7 July 2017) BERT (R-ZF—+tFLALAFF) A B
Mr. LIN Xiang (resigned on 7 July 2017) WHEE (RZE—+FLAEAFE) A B
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. TO Yin Fong Cecilica (appointed on 7 July 2017) HFF T (RZE—FLA+HEZF) A, B
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. LEUNG Man Fai (appointed on 10 October 2017) BYBEEE (RZF—+FFATHEZHF) A B
Ms. CHUNG Sau Wai Ada (gopointed on 11 July 2017) BEBNL (KT F+A+—HEZHF) A B
Mr. Clayton IP ERIELE A B
Ms. Miranda HO Mo Han (resigned on 10 October 2017) MEREL (R=F—+F+H+HFL) A, B
Mr. YANG Rusheng (resigned on 11 July 2017) BERE (RZE—tE+ AT —HEFE) A B
Note: Htit
A:  Attending seminars, briefing sessions, conference and/or A: EREHASE BN G FHE AwmiE-
forums.
B: Reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the B: MEARCER,/ A REBZHTEZRE - BT

economy and/or general business etc.

REIAEF -
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TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

(continued)

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and
thereafter on a yearly basis, disclose to the Group the
number and nature of offices held by such Director in
public companies and organizations and other significant
commitments.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

The human resources and remuneration committee was
established with specific written terms of reference which
was revised and adopted on 19 March 2012. As at 30 June
2018, the human resources and remuneration committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Leung Man Fai (Chairperson), Ms. Chung Sau
Wai Ada and Mr. Clayton Ip.

The human resources and remuneration committee
is responsible for, among other things, making
recommendations to the Board regarding the overall
remuneration policy, remuneration of Directors and senior
management of the Group, share option scheme, bonus
structure, provident fund and other compensation-related
issues. This committee consults with the Chairperson
and/or other Board members on its proposals and
recommendations and has access to professional advice,
if necessary. The human resources and remuneration
committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge
and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the human resources and
remuneration committee is posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year under review, the human resources and
remuneration committee held four meetings to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established with specific
written terms of reference which was revised and adopted
on 23 September 2014. As at 30 June 2018, the nomination
committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. Leung Man Fai (Chairperson),
Ms. Chung Sau Wai Ada and Mr. Clayton Ip.

The main duties of the nomination committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board
annually, making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become members of the Board, selecting individuals
nominated for directorships, assessing the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and other executive
director. The nomination committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge and perform its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the nomination
committee is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The nomination committee meets at least
once a year.

During the year under review, the nomination committee
held two meetings to review the composition and diversity
of the Board, assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and consider the appointments of
Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with specific
written terms of reference which was revised and adopted
on 1 January 2016. The main duties of the audit committee
include, among other things, the following:

(a) to review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
Company's staff responsible for the accounting and
financial reporting function or external auditor before
submission to the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

(b) to review the relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work performed by the auditor,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditor.

(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Company's financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

The audit committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge and perform its duties.

Other duties of the audit committee are set out in its
specific terms of reference which is posted on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The audit
committee shall meet at least twice a year.

As at 30 June 2018, the audit committee consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung
Man Fai (Chairperson), Ms. Chung Sau Wai Ada and Mr.
Clayton Ip. No member of the audit committee is a former
partner of the existing audit firm of the Company within one
year on the date of his ceasing to be a partner or had any
financial interest in the auditing firm. The audit committee
has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and discussed internal controls and
financial reporting matters with the management team of
the Company.

During the year under review, the audit committee held
three meetings to review, among other things, the
Company’'s audited condensed consolidated statement of
assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2017, interim report
for the six months ended 31 December 2017 and annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2017 The audit committee
has also reviewed the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, report on the Company's internal control and
risk management review and processes as well as the re-
appointment of the external auditor. There is no material
uncertainty relating to events and conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. There is no disagreement between the
Board and the audit committee regarding the selection,
appointment, resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(A8
(A5

%

BEREREG #)
(b) SEREBEETZTE LEMREAKER
WA BB BB Y R EREE
ZERBRINEREMAE SRR RS

23
A ©

(0 WAL Z B R B - o HEE S
ERERERSENRABRFRE RARE

e

ERZBECEREATERNETRATHBR

TS B R BE AR R AR A
LR BREARERBEREN - BREAR
BEFRLOBRITRARH -

R-ZE-NFRA=TH BEXEEEH=FHET
3F$HTT§$ZEEX’EH%X@§EE(EEFL) ‘ﬁé%i’&
HERERERE -BBEEREZEGKNERRR
iﬁ&’fi%ﬂ(ﬁﬂi%i‘%FﬁZﬂM{é%/\(Béﬁ%tﬂ%‘&
A%)\ZEI%E {5 IE ¥R % % B0AD = B AR T A
EHme ARG —FR) BERZEGCENAE
IFﬁTmﬁWZ%Eﬂ?E'J&TEf | 3 88 AN B E IR B B
AR M B ERRER -

REBEFEN EXEEQCRITZRGH UE
B (BB ARAR_E—tF+-_A=+—
AZEERMREAEENABER BRE-Z—L
FH-A=ZT-HLERNERZHRHMRENEE—
Tt FERNA=ZTHEFEZFR-ERZEGT
ERAMBERBEERERF YR ARF ZABE
zhEBERRSEEFARERZEIERE
Bl 6 o D o BR A I M E (T ER A BE M N R BIRE B S
BREELFERRHAZEHRBEABHEZERT
Eﬁml% %%ﬁﬁgﬁé,\aﬁﬁﬁ CRE-B



TRERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The accounts for the year were audited by Moore Stephens
CPA Limited, whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee
has recommended to the Board that Moore Stephens CPA
Limited be nominated for re-appointment as the auditor of
the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The company secretary keeps full minutes of all audit
committee meetings. In line with practices consistent
with Board meetings and other committee meetings, draft
and final version of audit committee meeting minutes
are circulated to all members of the audit committee for
comments, approval and record as soon as practicable after
each meeting.

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The investment committee was established with specific
written terms of reference which was adopted on 15
August 2017. As at 30 June 2018, the investment committee
consists of one executive Director, namely, Mr. Liu Ka Lim
(Chairperson), one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Ms. Chung Sau Wai Ada and two executive staff
of the Company. The investment committee is responsible
for, among other things, to review investment performance
and to advise the Company on their investment of cash,
cash equivalents, financial assets, margin deposits, cash
collateral taking account of the necessary constraints on
the deployment of the various sources and purposes of the
funds to enhance the Company’s investment returns.

The specific terms of reference of the investment
committee is posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company. The investment committee meets at least
twice a year.

During the year under review, the investment committee
held two meetings to consider the availability of suitable
investments opportunities for the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity within the Board. The
Company considered diversity of board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversified perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be made upon the merits of the
selected candidates and their contribution to the Board. The
Board considered the measurable objectives, including but
not limited to skills, knowledge, professional experience and
cultural and educational background, and agreed that these
measurable objectives were achieved for the diversity of the
Board which contributed to the corporate strategy and the
business development of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the current Board
composition under diversified perspectives is set out as
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the fee for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services was approximately
HK$3,571,000 (2017: HK$2,531,000) and that for non-
audit services mainly relating to taxation matters was
approximately HK$10,000 (2017: HK$132,000 mainly relating
to taxation matters). The increase in fees for audit services
was due to the preparation of the audited condensed
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2017 which was not requested by the
Board during the year ended 30 June 2017.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Specific enquiries have been made with all
Directors, who have confirmed that, during the year ended
30 June 2018, each of them has complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITOR

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group. The auditor is responsible to form an
independent opinion on the audited financial statements
and report the same to the shareholders of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions including but not limited to developing
and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on
corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring training
and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, reviewing and monitoring the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, and reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the
overall strategic development of the Group's business. All
Directors have formal letters of appointment setting out
key terms and conditions of their appointment. Due to the
diversity and volume of the Group's business, responsibility
in relation to the daily operations and execution of the
strategic business plans are delegated to the management
of the Group.

All committees, namely the audit committee, the human
resources and remuneration committee, the nomination
committee and the investment committee, have
specific terms of reference setting out the authorities
and responsibilities of the respective committee. All
committees are required by their terms of reference to
report to the Board in relation to their decisions, findings or
recommendations, and in certain specific situations, to seek
the Board's approval before taking any actions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board will review, on a yearly basis, all delegations
by the Board to different committees to ensure that such
delegations are appropriate and continue to be beneficial to
the Company as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and
officers’ liability to provide adequate cover, as determined
by the Board, in respect of the current Board members and
senior management of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level
of transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its shareholders. The
commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company's activities can be
reflected in various aspects.

To maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the
annual and special general meeting provides an opportunity
for shareholders to exchange views with the Board.

Mr. Liu Ka Lim, an executive Director, and Ms. To Yin Fong, a
non-executive Director, attended the annual general meeting
on 28 December 2017 and adjourned annual general
meeting on 29 January 2018 (the “2017 Annual General
Meeting”) so as to ensure that shareholders’ views were
communicated to the Board. A separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairperson in respect of each separate
issue at the annual general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are
reviewed from time to time to ensure that the Company
conforms to the best corporate governance practices. The
circular in relation to the arrangement of annual general
meeting will be circulated to all shareholders at least twenty
one clear days prior to the holding of the annual general
meeting, in which it sets out the details of each resolution
proposed and other relevant information. At the 2017 Annual
General Meeting, all resolutions were put to vote by poll.
Tricor Secretaries Limited, the Company's Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office was engaged as
scrutineer to ensure votes were properly counted. The rights
of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a poll on
resolutions at general meeting are contained in the Articles
of Association. An explanation of the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll is provided to the shareholders at
the commencement of the meeting. The Chairperson
and other directors would respond to queries raised by
the shareholders regarding the voting procedures. The
poll results are published in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (continued)

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, two or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within twenty one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in the same manner.

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the
Company, a shareholder should lodge a written notice
of his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with his/her/its
detailed contact information at Unit 3416, 34th Floor, China
Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, No.168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. The identity of the
shareholder will be verified with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar and transfer office. Upon confirmation
by the branch share registrar and transfer office that the
request is made by a shareholder and that if the request is
proper, the Board will include the Proposal in the agenda
for the general meeting. The notice period to be given to all
the shareholders for consideration of the Proposal raised
by the shareholder concerned at the general meeting varies
according to the nature of the Proposal as follows:

(1) Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 20 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an annual general meeting;

(2)  Notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval by way of a special resolution in an
extraordinary general meeting;

(3)  Notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less
than 10 clear business days in writing if the Proposal
requires approval in an extraordinary general meeting
other than by way of a special resolution of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS (continued)

The Company also communicates to its shareholders
through its annual and interim reports. The Directors,
company secretary or other appropriate members of senior
management also respond promptly to inquiries from
shareholders and investors.

Shareholders may at any time serve their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of company secretary at
Unit 3416, 34th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, No. 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to shareholders and
investors. The Company updates shareholders on its latest
business developments and financial performance through
its annual and interim reports and notices, announcements
and circulars. The Company’s website (www.tricor.com.hk/
webservice/01059) provides a communication platform to
the public and the shareholders.

During the year under review, there had been no significant
change made to the Company's constitutional documents.

The Articles of Association is available on both the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management functions and internal control systems of the
Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of these
systems has been conducted annually. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring
such systems, while the Board oversees management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis.

During the year, the Board has complied with the risk
management and internal control code provisions of the
CG Code by establishing and maintaining appropriate and
effective risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control system. Such review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. Main features of the risk management
and internal control systems are described in the sections
below:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk
review process to enable comprehensive identification and
prioritization of all material risks throughout the Group,
escalation of material risks at the right managerial level,
effective risk dialogue among the management, and proper
oversight of risk mitigation efforts.
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“Top-down”
Overseeing,
identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk at
corporate level
[BEMmT]
REEER
B @l
ERERIAEESIENA

“Bottom-up”
|[dentification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk
at business unit level
and across
functional areas
[B~mmLE]
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KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

The Board EE &
Has overall responsibility for the Group's risk management systems and
internal control systems;
BRAEASEZAREEERAPEZEHE
Sets strategic objectives;
il E SR B B A2
Reviews the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal
control systems;
iz B bR E IR I E R B B 2 B 2 B
Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure to our major risks; and
ERTERBOMERMAZRABRIEE &
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.

mEREEX(CzEZEIRE T -

Management & &
Designs, implements, and monitors risk management and internal control
systems; and
HE BEkERRARERERADEZESE: R
Assesses our risk and mitigating measures Company-wide.

BRERAYNCIE= N DA N PS8 - i

Audit Committee EXZE S
Supports the Board in monitoring risk exposure, design and effectiveness
of the underlying risk management and internal control systems.
SEREEYERERATE R LR RS IE &R BB E | 2 il E R
B o

Operational Level & EEH
Risk identification, assessment and mitigation performed across the
business; and
PER A AP R E R &
Risk management process and internal controls practiced across business
operations and functional areas.
MEKLENRLEBREERREEREF R ABPEE-
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk Management Framework (continued)

The risk management framework adopted by the Group is
embedded in our strategy development, business planning
and day-to-day operations. The Group adopts a control
and risk self-assessment methodology and continuously
assess and manages its risk profile on a regular basis. Risks
that are relevant to the Group's business are identified,
assessed and ranked according to their likelihood and
consequence on the Group. Risk owners are required to
submit risk alerts with risk response promptly to the Board
and Audit Committee for ongoing review and monitoring.
Action plans were formulated and implemented during the
year to address the areas of concern effectively.

Internal Control System and Continuous
Improvement

The Company has in place an internal control system which
is based on the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COS0O") framework
for internal controls and has five components, namely
Control Environment; Risk Assessment; Control Activities;
Information and Communication; and Monitoring. In
developing our internal control system, we have taken into
consideration our organizational structure and the nature of
our business activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and
risk management system. The initial phase of the plan
focused on adopting a more risk-based (instead of process
based) approach to risk identification and assessment. This
approach enriches our ability to analyze risks and respond
to opportunities as we pursue our strategic objectives.
Management reporting to the Audit Committee has also
been enhanced, including the presentation of special
reports on selected risk topics.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Internal Control System and Continuous
Improvement (continued)

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of
treating the COSO framework as a framework-update
exercise, a holistic approach has been adopted by us,
taking into consideration the Company's circumstances,
including its ongoing internal controls and risk management
improvement plan as well as other strategic initiatives. (e.g.
corporate social responsibility strategy and reporting). All
of these enhance our ultimate objective to make our risk
management system a “live” one that is practiced on a day-
to-day basis by operating units.

In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the
Group also adopts and implements an inside information
policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper
safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a
limited number of employees on a need-to-know
basis. Employees who are in possession of inside
information are fully conversant with their obligations
to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the
Group enters into significant negotiations.

o The Executive Directors are the designated persons
who speak on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the
media, analysts or investors.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL(meww

Internal Audit

The Group has engaged an external professional consultant
to take the primary role to perform the Internal Audit (“IA")
function, and professional staff with relevant expertise of
the Group are designated to provide assistance in the IA
function. The IA function is independent of the Group's daily
operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management
and internal control systems by conducting interviews,
walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness.

An |A plan has been approved by the Board. According
to the established plan, review of the risk management
and internal control systems is conducted annually and
the results are reported to the Board via Audit Committee
afterwards.

Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Board, through its
review and the reviews made by IA function and Audit
Committee, considered that the risk management and
internal control system were effective and adequate. No
significant areas of concern that may affect the financial,
operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group has been identified. During
the review, the Board also considered the resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions,
and their training and budget were adequate. Such systems,
however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that good corporate governance
is significant in strengthening investor confidence and
attracting investment. The management will devote
considerable effort to strengthening and improving the
standards of the corporate governance of the Group. Any
views and suggestions from the shareholders to promote
and improve our transparency are also welcome.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Kantone Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON THE LOSS,
CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH FLOWS

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Kantone Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 72 to 183, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 30 June 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON THE LOSS,
CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH FLOWS

(continued)

Because of the significance of the matters described in the
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in
Equity and Cash Flows section of our report, we have not
been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
provide a basis for an audit opinion on the loss, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018.

QUALIFIED OPINION ON THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2018, and the noted thereon.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the
matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion on
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position section
of our report, the consolidated statement of financial
position gives a true and fair view of the Group's affairs as
at 30 June 2018 in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE LOSS, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH
FLOWS

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgradings and reclassifications of cultural
products

Included in the Group's inventories as at 30 June 2017 were
cultural products whose aggregate carrying amount was
HK$1,638,975,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
HK$1,740,108,000. An impairment loss of HK$1,740,108,000
had been recognised by the Group for the year ended 30
June 2017. For the year ended 30 June 2018, a further
impairment loss of HK$1,634,615,000 has been recognised
by the Group. We did not express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30
June 2017 as disclosed in the auditor’s report for the year
ended 30 June 2017.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Except for the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer
of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in Equity and Cash Flows
section below, we have determined that there are no other
key audit matters to communicate in our report which relate
to our qualified opinion on the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE LOSS, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH
FLOWS (continued)

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgradings and reclassifications of cultural
products (continued)

For the purposes of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018,
as disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, as a result of the inconsistencies in the
grading and classification of cultural products performed
by different experts as at 30 June 2017 and 2016, the
current management of the Group resolved to arrange
another team of cultural product and jewellery experts
(the “Current Experts”) to conduct a detailed inspection
of the cultural products during the year regarding their
grading and classification in respect of the year ended 30
June 2018. As disclosed in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group engaged the Appraisal
Center to conduct a scientific examination of 139 pieces of
cultural products, so as to better determine their nature and
substance of these cultural products. Based on the work
conducted by the Current Experts and the Appraisal Center,
further downgradings were identified. Accordingly, a further
impairment loss (as mentioned above) of HK$1,634,615,000
has been recognised for the year for the purpose of
preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

Subsequent to the publication of the Audited Condensed
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities and for
the purpose of the annual results of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2018, the directors of the Company
unanimously decided to take the approach of eliminating
any lingering doubts on the nature of the cultural products
inventory so as to obtain a final and uncontroversial
conclusion for our inventory.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ON
THE LOSS, CHANGES IN EQUITY AND CASH
FLOWS (continued)

Impairment of inventories resulting from
downgradings and reclassifications of cultural
products (continued)

The directors of the Company were of the view that, with
the detailed exercise performed by the Current Experts and
the Appraisal Center, the carrying amount net of impairment
recognised so far, reflected in the consolidated statement of
financial position, was the best estimate of the recoverable
amount of the cultural products. We believe the matter
of the scope limitations referred to above no longer have
possible effect on the figure presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018.

However, as the closing balance of the cultural products as
at 30 June 2017 is carried forward as the opening balance
for the current year, any adjustments found to be necessary
to the closing balance as at 30 June 2017 may have a
significant effect on the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position

As described in the Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss,
Changes in Equity and Cash Flows section of our report,
the matters of the scope limitations referred to inventories
no longer have effect on the figures presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2018.

However, the comparative figures presented in the
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018 may
contain material misstatements and hence may not be
comparable with the figures.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSA") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the financial highlights, corporate
information, chairperson’s statement, management
discussion and analysis, directors and senior management
profile, directors’ report, corporate governance report and
financial summary, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of other information, we
are required to report that fact. As described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in Equity and
Cash Flows and for Qualified Opinion on the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position sections above, we were
unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about
the matters described above. Accordingly, we are unable
to conclude whether or not the other information in the
directors’ report is materially misstated with respect to this
matter.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FORTHE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS(meww

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:—

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS(mewm

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion on the Loss, Changes in Equity and
Cash Flows section of our report, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 30
June 2018.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Sai Kit
Practising Certificate Number: P05544

Hong Kong, 27 September 2018
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meRaRkEftEHKER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BE-_Z—N\F~A=1HI1&E FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &t FET FET
Revenue I 2% 6 136,743 140,854
Cost of sales $HE AR (60,708) (67,836)
Gross profit ER 76,035 73,018
Other income, gains and losses HaA - Wz R EiE 7 3,957 3,887
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME AR 2 W 11 - 2,167
Distribution costs 7 SHBAR (27,692) (26,429)
General and administrative expenses —#& M 1T 3% & (53,431) (50,825)
Impairment losses recognised for HEEER 2 REEE
inventories 17 (1,634,615) (1,740,108)
Impairment losses recognised for LR L R A48 B B RN P AR
development costs for systems 2B EEE
and networks 16 - (14,650)
Impairment losses recognised for L FE WH th BR SRET SR 2
other receivables HEEE 18 (5,835) =
Research and development costs 7 R FEE A T
expensed (2,712) (3,089)
Finance costs B 5 A AR 8 (308) (146)
Loss before taxation BR B AT 518 9 (1,644,601) (1,756,175)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrEfEe, (ZH) 12 713 (405)
Lossfortheyear 3 reEgE (1.643,888) __ (1,756,580)
Other comprehensive Hi2mEmika (XH):
income/(expense):
Item that will not be reclassified BreEFsBEER
to profit or loss: A :
Remeasurement of defined EEEEEMNRAKEE
benefits pension plans 25(b) 36,450 (208)
Item that may be reclassified HEensfoEzEar
subsequently to profit or loss: EH :
Exchange difference arising EBEINEFMEEE 2
on translation of foreign PEH =%
operations 1,155 188
Other comprehensive income/ REEHMEERE (XH)
egrmoleitoyeey . e 37605 | (20
Total comprehensive expense AEEEZEZHAE
for the year (1,606,283) (1,756,600)
Loss per share BREE
— Basic and diluted (2017: Restated) —ZEAR&EHS
(ZE—+F:87%) 14 HK$(8.33) % T HK$(8.90) 77T
The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these F78E183EME ZME AL SHRAMEHRER A

consolidated financial statements.

BCER Y ©
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REMBERRK
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

RZ=ZZT—/\FX A=+ H AT 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E2-N\E —E—+F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
oka FET F&ET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B K& 15 29,931 31,366
Development costs for systems ES i UNE EF e R g N
and networks 16 - -
- . A SO 31,366
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 24,163 1,658,321
Trade and other receivables FEUWE 5 K H M BR 5K 18 32,809 35,928
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHR 19 71,626 76,101
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 128,598 1,770,350
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables BB 5 & H MR K 20 33,391 56,083
Contract liabilities aHaE 21 21,034 =
Warranty provision IREREE 22 1,236 1,073
Amount due to a director JEN—REERA 23 4,180 3,000
Bank borrowing — amount due RITEBE-—R—FANEH
within one year 24 - 3,636
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 59,841 = 63,792
Netcurrentassets =~ #"BAERE 00000000 68,757 1,706,558
Total assets less current liabilities BE®ERABHA®E 98688 1737924
Non-current liability kRBER
Retirement benefit obligations R8I 25(b) 27,774 60,727
27,774 60,727
Net assets EERE 70,914 1,677,197
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

FINANCIAL POSITION

R=ZZ—/\FXA=+H AT 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
bt FET FHET

Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital &N 27(b) 19,731 986,538
Reserves (ki 51,183 690,659
Total equity e 70,914 1,677,197

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 183
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 27 September 2018 and are signed on its behalf

by:

WONG MAN WINNY
58
Chairperson
*E

The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

FE2E18EMBE AU BRRER =T —\F
NAZ+tERESSHZRITERE  WAH T
BEEREREE:

LIU KA LIM
BER
Director

BE

78 183AME 2 MERU TR M REK 24



RERTERZ X
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

BHE-_ZT—N\FNA=1+HI%E FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

Retained
profits/
Share Share Capital Translation  (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses) equity
RERR,/ BAER
B& B3R ME BARE ER (RiBR)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note 27(c)fi))  (note 27(c)fi))  (note 27(c)fiii))
(Witorichy) — (Haerehi)  (H27icli)
At 1 July 2016 RZB-XEtH-H 986,538 795,357 - 8,020 1,643,882 3,433,797
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - (1,756,580) (1,756,580)
Remeasurement of defined EETERFIRAG
benefits pension plans - - - - (208) (208)
Exchange difference arising on AEMNEBREREE
translation of foreign operations ZEHES - - - 188 - 188
Total comprehensive expense FEERETLAE
for the year - - - 188 (1,756,788) (1,756,600)
At 30 June 2017 and R=B-tFXA=1+AEK
at 1 July 2017 “E-tEtA-H 986,538 795,357* -* 8,208* (112,906)* 1,677,197
Loss for the year rERER - - - - (1,643,888) (1,643,888)
Remeasurement of defined EETHEETRKE
benefits pension plans - - - - 36,450 36,450
Exchange difference arising on RENEBAEmES
translation of foreign operations ZERER - - - 1,155 - 1,155
Total comprehensive expense FEEREXHAE
for the year - - - 1,155 (1,607438) (1,606,283)
Capital reduction (note 27(b)) RAEIR (H#2710)) (966,807) - 966,807 - - -
At 30 June 2018 R=B-NEXB=tH 19,731 795,357+ 966,807+ 9,363*  (1,720,344) 70,914
& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves 3 N ERERFEKRGEVBRARZEEHE

of approximately HK$51,183,000 (2017: HK$690,659,000) in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 78 to 183 form part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_Z—-\F~A=7HLFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\E TE—
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b &t FET FET
Cash flows from operating REXBZRER
activities
Loss before taxation B AT B 18 (1,644,601) (1,756,175)
Adjustments for: BEE2
Amortisation of development costs  Z &t & 48 4% B 2 ik AR~ 5 44
for systems and networks 9 - 7,044
Depreciation of property, ME - BERRBIITE
plant and equipment 9 8,507 8,608
Loss on disposal of property, HEME BERREZEE
plant and equipment 57 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2K 11 - (2,167)
Finance costs ZUR I N 8 308 146
Impairment losses recognised HEERRZREERE
for inventories 17 1,634,615 1,740,108
Impairment losses recognised RS R A4S A
for development costs for FriERR 2 (B &5 1
systems and networks 16 - 14,650
Impairment losses recognised for St 78 W EL At B 3K P i 2R
other receivables HIEEE 5,835 =
Bad debts written off for trade HE e E SRR 2 E R
receivables 9 41 -
Interest income FLEWA 7 (171) (180)
4,961 12,034
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEZRL/(3Em) 38 (1,121)
Increase in trade and FEWE 5 I E b BR 5K 2 38 0
other receivables (2,350) (2,135)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and ERESREMERZ
other payables GRY) /#m (24,986) 871
Increase in contract liabilities AHAFE 2N 21,034 =
Increase/(decrease) in REBEZEN CRD)
warranty provision 136 (26)
Net cash (used in)/generated from &£ (FiH) Bz
operating activities ReFHE (1,167) 9,623
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REHRERB R
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HE-_Z—-/\FXA=THLFE FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2017
—E-N\F TE—F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
b &t FET FET
Cash flows from investing RETHZHEER
activities
Additions to property, plant and NEME  BE REE
equipment 15 (6,225) (7,125)
Interest received B B 7 171 180
Net cash outflow from HEMBARRL 2R FE
disposal of subsidiaries 11 - (863)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZ - BWEMZHEMEZ
plant and equipment IR 15 = 108
Net cash used in investing REZBEZRSFE
activities (6,054) (7,700)
Cash flows from financing MELTBHZHEER
activities
Loan from a director KE—BEFER 19(b) 4,780 3,000
Repayment to a director EE—REEHHE 19(b) (600) =
Repayment of other payables B8 e E M BR X 19(b) (1,180) =
Repayment of bank borrowing BERITEE 19(b) (3,729) (8,559)
New borrowings raised MEREE 19(b) - 5,000
Interest paid EXREAISS 19(b) (308) (148)
Net cash used in financing MELTBEZRSFE
activities (1,037) (705)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BRE&E MRS EE 2
cash equivalents CR) /8 mFEaE (8,258) 1,218
Cash and cash equivalents at FNReRBRLERE
beginning of the year 76,101 74,377
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREE s &
changes 3,783 506
Cash and cash equivalents atend F#HERELZHE
of the year 19 71,626 76,101

The notes on pages 78 to 183
consolidated financial statements.

form part of these
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e B ORI R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

1.

GENERAL

Kantone Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies
Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Exchange”).
Its ultimate and immediate holding company is
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (“Champion”),
a company which was originally incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands but subsequently re-domiciled
to Bermuda, and its shares are also listed on the
Main Board of the Exchange. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements have been
presented in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), which is
also the Company's functional currency. All values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 33.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

Kantone Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied,
for the first time in the current year, the following new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"):

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRS 12 2014-2016 Cycle

These new standards and interpretations do not have
significant impact to the Group. However, additional
disclosure has been included in note 19 to satisfy
the new disclosure requirements introduced by the
amendments to HKAS 7 which require entities to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both changes
arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.
Comparative information is not included in accordance
with the transitional provisions set out in the
amendments.

GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018
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5 M35 R MR
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BRI REETEBY KR
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA([ERMBHREED )
STANDARDS ("HKFRSS") (continued) (&)

The Group has also elected to early adopt the AEBRAFENDERERERNEESE
following standards issued by HKICPA for the current B~ MM LA T 2R :
year:

Effective for
annual reporting
periods beginning

on or after
RTIBHEASR AR
R zFEREHBER
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BB EERIZER SRITA —E-NF—HA—H
HKFRS 9 Amendments Prepayment Features with 1 January 2019
Negative Compensation
BEM R E 2L BB BR/ENRAIEREGE —T-hF—H—H
FIFRIEET A
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
BB 2R 1558 BEPa KK —E-NF—-—H—H
HKFRS 15 Amendments Clarification to HKFRS 15 Revenue Contracts 1 January 2018
with Customers
BB 5 HmE 2L BB EERIZE 155 —T-NF—HA—H
ERIA PN BEREHNEZEE
The Group has also elected to apply the modified AEF D ERRALETRENE  BK
retrospective approach which means that the MOEFFEERN T —tFLtA—HBER
cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised B AP ER mAal—PHEAOEERETTFE
in retained profits as of 1 July 2017 and that prior i o BN B B 15 3R 5 E R B 95k R BB B
period comparatives will not be restated. The effects TS 2E RIS 1558 ) 52 LMK EES o
of the adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 are set out
in note 3.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretation

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSS") (continued) (&)

AEBEYEREEERAATERMERMRE
WM HET RSERTER BT AREE -

REMBE®RRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

ofF 34

i

that have been issued but are not yet effective.

2. B#FHEI R

RIZFT BB W
ZA (THBHBRERA])

Effective for annual
reporting periods
beginning on or after
RTHBEHEBRUE
R zEFEREHBER

HKAS 28 and HKFRS 10
amendments

EE G ERE28 REE
B 5 R 5 2 A B 10518 5T A

HKAS 40 Amendments
BB G ERIEL0HRIEET A

HKFRS 2 Amendments
BRBMBRELEE2RIEFT A

Amendments to HKFRSs

BB REEERT A

Amendments to HKFRSs

BRPBRELANERT A

HK (IFRIC) — Interpretation 22

T8 (BRUBRELRE
ZEg) —REE2%

HKFRS 16
BBM B RE LB 165

HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 23

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

KREEEEBMERNARGECEZHANEEL
B E&E

Transfer of Investment Property

BREREEME

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions
AR BEBNRR S 2 EKE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

—E-NMEE_T-RFRBCAEEMBRE
RN F E B

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle

TEhFEE—EFEBCABNBERE
A BI| 4F [2 Bl

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

SR H RIANKE

Leases
HE

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

To be determined*
frE B 8~

1 January 2018
—ET-NF—-H—H
1 January 2018
—F-N\F—A—H
1 January 2018

—E-N\E-A-H

1 January 2019

—E-NF—H—H

1 January 2018

—ET-N\%F—H—H

1 January 2019

—E—-NLF—A—H

1 January 2019

B (BEMBEHREZRE FriSfiE e 2 T It —E-hF—HA—H
ZEg) ZEF23R
@ The amendments were originally intended to be * REEITIARABEEBRN -_E—+E— 8 —

effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017. The effective date has now been

deferred. Early application of the amendments {BETAR o

continues to be permitted.

Bk KRB FERREER - EHA
HREBRTE HEBEEERFRAZRS

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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e B ORI R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z—\F,Xx A=+ H 30JUNE 2018

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSS") (continued)

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the related impact of adopting the above new and
revised HKFRSs. So far, the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) have preliminary concluded that
the above new and revised HKFRSs will be adopted
at the respective effective dates and the adoption of
them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group except
for the following:

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

For lessees, HKFRS 16 introduces a single lessee
accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its
obligation to make lease payments. For lessors,
HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17 Accordingly, a
lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or financial leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently. The standard is
mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019. Earlier application is permitted
for entities that apply HKFRS 15 at or before the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for
the Group's operating leases. As at the reporting
date, the Group has non-cancellable operating lease
commitments of HK$6,574,000 (note 30). The Group
estimates that none of these relate to payments for
short-term and low value leases which will continue
to be accounted for based on the current accounting
model. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short term leases. Detailed
impact will be disclosed after a detailed analysis is
performed.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material impact on the Group's consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs (which includes
all the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
defined benefit retirement plan. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within
the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

&

FTESTHTHER#

Basis of consolidation meaRE
The consolidated financial statements incorporate RAEVBRRHALRDRARERBARR=
the financial statements of the Company and its T N\ERNA=ZTHZHBEHRK KB AR

subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018. A subsidiary is an
entity directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Company:

RARAFEEREEEG BB - ARAE
B ST #E AR A ER AT AR I

. has power over the investee; . AR EHRITERD
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from . E2MEEHR X MERHEE

its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income
to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a
subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's
interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

Changes in accounting policies

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments

The Group has elected to early adopt HKFRS
9, from 1 July 2017. As permitted by the
transitional provisions of HKFRS 9, the Group has
elected not to restate comparative figures. Any
adjustments to the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities at the date of transition are
recognised in the opening retained profits of the
current year.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has resulted in changes
in the accounting policies for classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities and impairment of financial assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a)

Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (continued)

The Group has also early adopted the

consequential amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures together with HKFRS
9. Changes include transition disclosures and
detailed qualitative and quantitative information
about the expected credit loss (“ECL")
calculations such as the assumptions and inputs

used are set out as below.

Further details of the nature and effect of the
changes to previous accounting policies and the
transition approach are set out below:

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

HKFRS 9 categories financial assets into
three principal classification categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through other comprehensive income
("FVTOCI") and at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"). These supersede
HKAS 39's categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets measured at FVTPL.
The classification of investments in debt
instruments under HKFRS 9 is based on the
business model under which the financial
asset is managed and its contractual cash
flow characteristics. Under HKFRS 9,
derivatives embedded in contracts where
the host is a financial asset in the scope
of the standard are not separated from the
host. Instead, the hybrid instrument as a
whole is classified as financial assets at
FVTPL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a)

Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (continued)

(1)

Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

The measurement categories and the
carrying amount of financial assets in
accordance with HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 at
1 July 2017 are compared as follows:
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(1)

BB TAZAER;E (&

R_ZE—tFELtA-BRESE
B EREINE LB LT B
BELANFORNEMEEFE
BRIREmELRAT

Original
New measurement carrying New carrying
Financial Original measurement category under amount under amount under
assets category under HKAS 39 HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 HKFRS 9
EREHEN BEMBHEEL
EBEHER BRUMBREEL F395%T M HHETH
SREE E39F T MR EE A XL ANE R RREE HIREE
HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade and other Amortised cost (Loans and Amortised cost 35,928 35,928
receivables receivables)
K E 5 REMERR BHAA (ERREKRFIER) BEKA
Cash and cash Amortised cost (Loans and Amortised cost 76,101 76,101
equivalents receivables)
BeRkReEH BHEKA (ERREKHIE) BEKA
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

The measurement categories for all
financial liabilities remain the same. The
carrying amounts for all financial liabilities
at 1 July 2017 have not been impacted by
the initial application of HKFRS 9.

The Group did not designate or de-
designate any financial asset or financial
liability at FVTPL at 1 July 2017

(i) Credit loss

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss”
model in HKAS 39 with the ECL model.
The ECL model requires an ongoing
assessment and measurement of credit
risk associated with a financial asset and
therefore recognises ECLs earlier than
under the "“incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to
the following item:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and
cash equivalents and trade and other
receivables).
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(continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a) Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (continued)

(i1)

(i1i)

Credit loss (continued)

As at 1 July 2017, the Group assessed the
impact of expected loss allowance and
concluded that the amount of expected
credit loss is not significant to the Group.
As a result, the Directors considered no
adjustment to the retained profits as at 1
July 2017 is necessary.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting
from the early adoption of HKFRS 9 have
been applied retrospectively, except as
described below:

- Information relating to comparative
periods has not been restated.
Differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets resulting from the
adoption of HKFRS 9 are recognised
in retained profits and reserves
as at 1 July 2017 Accordingly, the
information presented for 2017
continues to be reported under HKAS
39 and thus may not be comparable
with the current period.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a)

(b)

Early adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (continued)

(iif) ~ Transition (continued)

- The following assessments have been
made on the basis of the facts and
circumstances that existed at 1 July
2017 (the date of initial application of
HKFRS 9 by the Group), in particular,
the determination of the business
model within which a financial asset
is held.

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

The Group has elected to early adopt HKFRS
15, from 1 July 2017. HKFRS 15 establishes
a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covered revenue arising from
sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified
the accounting for construction contracts.

HKFRS 15 also introduces additional qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements which
aim to enable users of the financial statements
to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts with customers.

The Group has elected to use the cumulative
effect transition method and has recognised
the cumulative effect of initial application as an
adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1
July 2017 Therefore, comparative information has
not been restated and continues to be reported
under HKASs 11 and 18. As allowed by HKFRS
15, the Group has applied the new requirements
only to contracts that were not completed before
1 July 2017
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b) Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (continued)

The revenue recognition of the principal activities
of the Group’s contracts with customers are as
follows:

(i)  Sales of cultural products

Revenue from sales of cultural products
is determined by management to be
recognised at a point in time when control
of the cultural products is transferred to the
customer.

(ii)  Sales of systems and software licensing
income

Revenue from sales of systems and
software licensing income are determined
by management to recognise at a point
in time (i.e. when control of the systems
and software licensing is transferred to the
customer).

(iif)  Installation service

Revenue from provision of installation
service is determined by management to
be recognised over time.

(iv) Maintenance service

Revenue from provision of maintenance
service is determined by management to
be recognised over time.

Detailed analysis and judgements applied in
relation to revenue recognition are set out in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (continued)

The excess of cumulative billings to customer
who received services from the Group over the
cumulative revenue recognised in profit or loss
is recognised as contract liabilities. The contract
liability is recognised as revenue when the Group
satisfies its performance obligations.

Reclassifications were made as at 1 July 2017 to
be consistent with the terminology used under
HKFRS 15:

o Receipts in advance from customers which
were previously recognised as trade and
other payables are reclassified to contract
liabilities.

The impact on the Group's financial position by
the early adoption of HKFRS 15 as compared to
HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 previously applied is as
follows:

FESFTBER (B)

EHBESE (5)
(b) ERRAEBYBHEGEAFEISHES

XM (&)

M B AKEES RSN EP Rt KW
B SRIR R B ET AR 5 W) REHER K
MEBEERARANABE - EAKEE
REDERER  fNREERSKE-

R-B—tFELA—REEHSE:
ST & T B 94 R 55 159 77 D
SELSEEEE

. FERFERREMNE F R H AR
RZEREEREAENDER
BHAE-

HLRZAERNEEGFERIFE18
SEEREAGHLENENG  AEED
FBEARR AR RABT BT B RS
HERIFGRMEZ R T EMT

As at 1 July 2017
R-E-t&+tA-H

Reclassifications
As under HKFRS 15

previously ERMERE Results
stated ER|ZE15HET as reported
KA25 ZEFE EHRER
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FAET FAET
Consolidated statement of FEMBRRE (FR)
financial position (extract):
Trade and other payables ENE S REAMER 56,083 (21,188) 34,895
Contract liabilities AHEE - 21,188 21,188
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (continued)

The amount by each financial statements line
items affected in the current period and period
to date by the early adoption of HKFRS 15 as
compared to HKAS 18 and HKAS 11 previously
applied is as follows:
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P B HRKRIA R AR RATRATE
MM EEAFNHEM I B L0
T

As at 30 June 2018
R-ZZ-\EXA=1H
Results without
the early
adoption Reclassifications
of HKFRS 15 under HKFRS 15

ARERN BEUEREE Results as
ERMBRERE RIEIBRETZ reported
RISE155; v 248 EfNE EHREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FET FET
Consolidated statement of FERMBERRE (FE):
financial position (extract):
Trade and other payables ERESREMER 54,425 (21,034) 33,391
Contract liabilities AHERE - 21,034 21,034

Year ended 30 June 2018
BE-E-\EAB=THLEE

Results without

the early Effects of the
adoption  early adoption
of HKFRS 15 of HKFRS 15
RRERM REFHER Results as
ERRBREE MRREER reported
RIS 2 ¥ & F15HEzHE EREE
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FAET
Consolidated statement of cash SABEHEE ()
flow (extract)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and BN EFHREMET 2
other payables (RD) /% (1,658) 154 (1,504)
Decrease in contract liabilities BNERZAD - (154) (154)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The
Group recognises revenue when it transfers control
over a product or service to a customer.

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@)  The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs.

(b) The Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced.

(¢) The Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternate use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group
recognises revenue at the point in time at which the
performance obligation is satisfied.

When the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
delivering the promised goods or services, it creates a
contract based asset on the amount of consideration
earned by the performance. Where the amount of
consideration received from a customer exceeds the
amount of revenue recognised, this gives rise to a
contract liability.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group recognises revenue from sales of goods
(including cultural products and sales of systems and
related software licensing) based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and the Group
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
The Group satisfies a performance obligation when it
transfers control of the cultural products and systems
and related software licencing to a customer. Sales
of systems and related software licensing is a single
performance obligation. Revenue from sale of goods is
recognised at the point in time.

The revenue from provision of installation service is
recognised over time.

The revenue from provision of maintenance services is
recognised over time in accordance with the terms of
respective underlying agreements.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance
from assets under operating leases, is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the relevant lease term.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

In the comparative period, revenue was recognised
when it was probable that the economic benefits
would flow to the Group and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue from sale of cultural
products and sales of systems and related software
were recognised, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership had been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintained neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

"

FTES u*lBZH‘— (&)

ME- -BERRE

ME BB REE (BRFAUAREER
HEEmAMBIAETRA R L RE
F)TREAR G AR 2 Rt E R 2R
BEEBRERNEAMBERRKRIIR-

BM% B RRRER 2 RAENGR
BEE AR R TR RATE
EAHRITE

Freehold land Nil KA FERE L i

Buildings on freehold land 50 years KAFERERT 504

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the HE LR REBRYOZ AR EHY
buildings remaining unexpired terms g5 SOF# D B EE AL

of the relevant leases or
50 years
Plant and machinery 10% - 50%
and communications

networks

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element
and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is released over
the lease term on a straight-line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment (other than development costs
for systems and networks and financial
assets)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

"

R = u+JBZ

ﬁ@(%.&ﬂm%?&$aﬁéﬂ

RBERTER FAEESEHNEEEZR
HE NEETRSAEANRBERAEEE
HRBEBE MEREMZETR AE
HEZEE 2 AW E 78 IAREE LR EEE
RE (1A ) - WA MAEHEREEZ T i E
HE AAKESEAEEMBREREMZ
O E-- WA BNAEE - B2 E
£ RAAEMASEEEFIZREM K
STHESREARNGEE B2 AR
ﬁzzﬁﬁur$@ﬂ

A E S E T A FEEREERARER
BE MAMEZBSERE FHEREE
B AT RRI SRR A AT R E 75 PR
Az ERRBEREARARZ G ARKRRES
MZBERERBZHAMBRE BREEHR
BE-EREE (LEREM) 2 AIKE S
A PR EREE AIZEE (REREM)
Z BREE R = H AT e O 2 3R - R B A5 IR RE
BN I8 2 h FERR o

MERBOREBE ZEEZREESH
SEAEEHGFZARESE  EEENZ
REENE RN ZEERNBEFEiWEER
BEEBEMREEEZREE - REBEZ
BOgENEET R -



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Development costs for systems and
networks

Development costs for systems and networks
projects including those paid to independent system
developers, are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Development costs for systems and
networks (continued)

Development costs are recognised only if all of the
following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the asset
so that it will be available for use or sale;

- the intention to complete the asset and use or
sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the asset;

- how the asset will generate probable future
economic benefits. Among other things, the
entity can demonstrate the existence of a market
for the output of the asset or the asset itself or,
if it is to be used internally, the usefulness of the
asset;

- the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the asset during its development.

Development costs that do not fulfill the above
conditions are recognised as expenses in the period in
which it is incurred.

Amortisation is calculated based on straight-line

basis over their estimated useful lives, subject to a
maximum of three years.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Development costs for systems and
networks (continued)

Where the recoverable amount of development costs
for systems and networks has declined below their
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to
reflect the decline in value. Where an impairment
loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

An item of development costs, including any deposits
and prepaid development costs for systems and
networks is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Research expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
Credit losses from financial instruments
Policy applicable from 1 July 2017

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (ECLs) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables).

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls for receivables
discounted using the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an approximation
thereof where the effect of discounting is material.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)
Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are
expected to result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting date;
and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items to which the ECL
model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs on
the basis that there are no significant financing
components. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors and an
assessment of both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments (including loan
commitments issued), the Group recognises a loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTTHE @

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(i) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor's ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk is performed on either an individual basis or a
collective basis. When the assessment is performed
on a collective basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics,
such as past due status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTTHE @

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Policy applicable from 1 July 2017 (continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
written off (either partially or in full) to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group determines that
the debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery
occurs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2017

Prior to 1 July 2017 an “incurred loss” model was
used to measure impairment losses on financial
assets not classified as at FVTPL (e.g. trade and other
receivables). Under the “incurred loss” model, an
impairment loss was recognised only when there was
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment included:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below
its cost.

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

- For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost,
impairment loss was measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate, where the effect of
discounting was material.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FESTTHE @

(continued)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)
Credit losses from financial instruments (continued)
Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2017 (continued)

This assessment was made collectively where these
financial assets shared similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and had not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future cash
flows for financial assets which were assessed for
impairment collectively were based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective Group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreased and the decrease could be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss was only recognised to the extent
that it did not result in the asset’'s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

When the recovery of a trade and other receivables
or other financial assets carried at amortised cost
was considered doubtful but not remote, associated
impairment losses were recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group was satisfied that recovery
was remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
was written off against the gross carrying amount
of those assets directly. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
were reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly
were recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation as a result of a past event, and
it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
measured at the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount
is the present value of those cash flows (where the
effect is material).

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method except for cost of cultural products,
which are assigned by using specific identification cost
method.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. ETESFH

(continued)

Contract liabilities (continued) Y O-VERE

When the contract includes a significant financing HMEANBREERABRETHF GHRELRE
component, the contract balance includes interest REBRREREENHE -

accrued under the effective interest method.

Policy prior to 1 July 2017

In the comparative period, amounts received before
the related service was performed were presented
as “receipts in advance” under “trade and other
payables”. These balances have been reclassified on 1
July 2017 as shown in note 20.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right
to receive consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due. If revenue has been recognised
before the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration, the amount is presented as a contract
asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents
for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed
for ECL.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Trade and other payables are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense is recognised in accordance with the
Group's accounting policy for borrowing costs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
taxation’ as reported in profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable and deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity respectively.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the directors of the
Company that made strategic decisions during the
year.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
group entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
(the translation reserve). Exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme"”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a self-
administered and funded pension scheme in the
United Kingdom. The scheme provides defined pension
benefits with reference to the final salary of the
members at retirement and their length of service. The
scheme is closed to new members since 1 January
2003.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Retirement benefit scheme (continued)

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit retirement plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine the present value and the fair
value of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation
is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method, when the calculation results
available in the form of any future refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contribution to the plan.

Service Cost and net interest expense/(income) on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognised
in profit or loss and allocated by function as part of
“administrative expense”. Current service cost is
measured as the increase in the present value of the
defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in current period. When the benefits of a
plan are changed, or when a plan is curtailed, the
portion of the changed benefit related to past service
by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss at the earlier
of when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs
and when related restructuring cost or termination
benefit are recognised. Net interest expense/(income)
for the period is determined by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit liability/
(asset). The discount rate is the yield at the end of the
reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group's obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement plans are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately
in retained earnings and will not be reclassified to
profit or loss. Remeasurements comprise actuarial
gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/(asset)) and any change in the effect of
the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/(asset).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Related party

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(i)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's parent;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related party (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personal services to the
reporting entity or to the parent of the
reporting entity.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

(a) Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies

In the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies, management has made the
following accounting judgements:

Classification of inventories

The Group holds certain cultural products for
resale in the ordinary course of business.
Although the value of cultural products may
appreciate over time, it is the Group's intention
to hold such assets for trading. Accordingly,
those items of cultural products are classified as
inventories under current assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND 4., BERHUEBRMAFTIAIEEE2EE
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION IR

118

UNCERTAINTY

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

Revenue recognition

Judgement is required in determining the timing
of satisfaction of performance obligation. The
Group derives revenue from sale of cultural
products, systems and related software.
The Group carefully evaluates the terms and
conditions stipulated in contract and/or sale
order with a customer and assesses when the
control of the goods has been transferred to
the customer. Also, the Group also assessed
whether the Group is acting as the principal (i.e.
whether the Group has the primary responsibility
for the sale of goods, bears the risks of loss
and obsolescence, and also has full discretion
over the goods.) The Directors have determined
that the control is passed to customer upon the
goods are delivered to the agreed destination.
This also is the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional.

The Directors assessed and considered that
the sales of systems and installation are
considered to be only one single performance
obligation and to be recognised at a particular
point in time (i.e. when control of the systems
and software is transferred to the customer).
The systems are standardised products and
the Group delivers products to customers after
installation of customised softwares in the
systems. The maintenance and installation work
is carried out in the Group's premises. The Group
grants customers the right to use the software
and no update or upgrade of the software is
required to be performed by the Group after
sales. Therefore, the the sales of systems and
software and related installation are assessed to
be not distinct in the context of the application
of HKFRS 15 as what being delivered to the
customer is a combined product with customer
specifications.
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SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in
applying the Group’s accounting
policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group sells large telecommunication
equipment and software that need to be installed
at customers’ premises. As management
considered that the hardware installation service
is a very simple procedure the equipment can
operate and function as normal way and the
customer can choose to install the equipment
by themselves or third party service provider,
the installation service and sales of equipment
are distinct in the content of the application of
HKFRS 15. Revenue from provision of installation
services is determined by management to
be recognised over time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs the installation service. The
Group recognises revenue in relation to the sales
of telecommunication equipment of a particular
point in time (i.e. when control is transferred to
the customers).

The Group signed contracts with customers
to provide maintenance over a period of time.
The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs the
maintenance service, therefore, revenue from
provision of maintenance service is recognised
over time.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Estimated impairment of development costs
for systems and networks and deposits

As at 30 June 2017, determining whether
development costs for systems and networks,
and deposits are impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use on a project-by-project basis.
The value in use calculation requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flow expected to
arise from the continuing use of the assets or
since successful launch of technology projects
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The Group estimates its cash
flow projection covering a period up to five
years based on financial budgets approved by
management and a discount rate ranging from
10% to 25% per annum.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Estimated impairment of development costs
for systems and networks and deposits
(continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the
Directors have continuously studied the market
conditions of the information technology
industry with the intention to invest in leading
technologies with high earning potential.
However, other than those systems owned
and developed by Multitone, the Directors had
not been able to establish whether the rest
of the systems owned by the Group were still
able to generate any revenue to the Group,
especially after the granting to independent third
parties during the year ended 30 June 2016 the
nonexclusive right to exploit and use the design
of certain of the Group’s developed systems and
networks. Noting that no revenue was generated
from the system sales, software licensing and
services segment in Asia pacific region during
the year, the Directors considered it prudent not
to project for any positive cash flow from those
systems in the foreseeable future. Therefore,
management decided not to make any further
investment into the existing development
projects in Asia pacific region but will maintain
its investment in the European region as the
relevant technologies are still developing well
and the management of Multitone has kept
increasing its market share in different parts
of Europe. The Directors consider it is not a
discontinued operation during the year ended 30
June 2017 The development costs for systems
and networks were fully impaired for the year
ended 30 June 2017

As at 30 June 2018, the management of the
Group consider the zero recoverable amount
of the development costs for systems and
networks is appropriate and no reversal of
impairment is considered necessary.
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4. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENT AND 4. BERAERMGFTTIEEEZEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION BRI ()

UNCERTAINTY (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (b) MHFTTFEEMEZEERIR (4)
(continued)
Impairment allowances on financial assets EHEE (AFEKEZREMBEN)H
(including trade and other receivables) B
The measurement of impairment losses under BREBENBREERNFIREME
HKFRS 9 across all categories of financial assets HrimemEE (BERKE S RE
(including trade and other receivables) requires b BR 5K TR E BB = A ED #
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the B R REEEREEE RTHE
amount and timing of future cash flows and R A KR IE N - ¥RKIB SR
collateral values when determining impairment EREHEENSEREEANRRL
losses and the assessment of a significant AEte WERFAXZEHAZES £
increase in credit risk. These estimates are FENEH A EEBAELE TRARE
driven by a number of factors, changes in which BB

can result in different levels of allowances.

The Directors performed a detailed assessment EEANBEEREIETHFATGET
based on the historical default rate and forward- HEWE 5 R EMRZCETAIELES
looking analysis on the trade and other debtors. freAW RBEZZT-N\FA=T+
As a result, provision for impairment on other B 1E 5 5 B AR H fth 8 AR SR B B B
receivables of HK$5,835,000 (2017: Nil) was 5,835,000 L (ZF—tF: &) o

recognised for the year ended 30 June 2018.

For the year ended 30 June 2018, trade HE-_ZT- N\ A=1THLFE"
receivables amounted to HK$411,000 (2017: FEUE 5 BRE411,0008 T (T —+
Nil) was written off due to the default by the F:Em)AERNEKRE SERRERER
individual trade debtors. No provision for finance MR- BN EBAGETARS R
lease receivable had been made as the debtor e ST s 3 R e Ol > Ul 3
is with high credit rating and has no historical FE R E S E L B

default record with the Group.

Net realisable value of inventories FEZ i #5FE

Net realisable value of inventories is the GEZEEFERASEBRESR
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of ZAFEER AT TR S KA & i
business, less estimated costs of completion ERTFAE -ZEHENREBERMUE
and selling expenses. These estimates are based mZBRTMERSHEFEERAUEE
on the current market price of similar products EmZBELRMIED TeREM
and historical experience of distributing and MAMBEELEEREL - BEBEENSHRE
selling products of similar nature. It could change AEST S mE -

significantly as a result of market condition.
Management assesses the estimations at each
reporting date.

At 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of the RZZE—NFARA=1TH ~EEF
Group's inventories was HK$24,163,000 (2017: B2 IRMEE /24,163,000 L (=&
HK$1,658,321,000). —- % :1,658,321,0004 70 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

TRMIAR
SET AER

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TEEE
At amortised cost T 55 A AN 104,355 -
Loans and receivables ,JA&JEHSZEE,TA - 111,756
(including deposits, (BREHFR
bank balances and cash) ERE)
Financial liabilities TRIBE
At amortised cost (including REHK A (REENES R
trade and other payables, HMEE B —BESHE
amount due to a director MRITIEE)
and bank borrowings) 37,571 41,531

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’'s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, finance lease receivable,
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, interest bearing bank borrowings and
amount due to a director. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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AR R ERENE  Re  |RITAEHRK
IE%‘[EH%Z%&E@EE%\‘%%&E??%%
AREN—BEERIB - ZEEMIAZEF
FEHARSHEANF RZEeRITEBHZ

2B B2 A0 {R] AR 7% S L B 2 ISR B P TR X o
EEEEEREEZERE AR AER
B R B EUE & 5 5 o

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA

123



124

e B ORI R
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z—\F,Xx A=+ H 30JUNE 2018

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’'s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation to
trade receivables, the management of the Group will
only allow customers with good credit history to pay
on credit. In addition, the management reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account
future discounted cash flows, to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that
the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid
funds which are deposited with several banks
with high credit ratings, the Group does not have
any other significant concentration of credit risk.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas. Liquid funds is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Liquidity risk

In managing the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in
cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of borrowings and the compliance of loan covenants.
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GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. The table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment
dates. The table includes both interest and principal
cash flows.

To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount of interest payment is estimated
based on the interest rate at the end of the reporting

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

$RTH#)
R EIERZERBEK (8)

FEELEE ()

BB EBERGER  TRFVNAEEEESE
BEZHBEOFH - IIRDEAEERZT
AREBREEZEBREBERKABSRT
/_T\OE%‘%W?'%ZﬁE@%D 18 & (RN 2 RTT
fEE TwRTERETEEEMN LS
fﬁﬁ't’ﬂ@a+)\3—$515x°ﬁ‘rm3Em$$m‘lﬁ
B2 28 A LART# RE (B8 A B R B R - 51 R
BEANBRASZHEER -

BIFBFIRGFH M B TIRBHE P s
ZHERGEERBEEANENREE

period.

Effective Within Total Carrying
interest  one year or Between Between undiscounted amount at
rates  on demand 1-2 years 2-5 years  cash flows 30 June 2018
R=B-N\f
1FRE ABE SA=tH
1 FilkS ZEA 122% 225  BERAE ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAK FET FET FET FET FET

2018 —E-N\E
Trade and other payables [EffE 5 R EMER - 33,391 - - 33,391 33,391
Amount due to a director [Eff —ZEEFHE - 4,180 - - 4,180 4,180
37571 = = 37571 37571
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 5. @I A&
Financial risk management objectives and Bk EIE B AERBUR (8)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nEELmEE (B)
Effective Within Total Carrying
interest  one year or Between Between undiscounted amount at
rates  on demand 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flows 30 June 2017
RZZ—+F
N A e o =!
ERME 1ER5REMN 1226 2%5F Ben#s ZREA
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=5 FHET FHET FHET FET FAET
2017 “E-tf
Trade and other payables [Ef & 5 R E iR 4 - 34,895 - - 34,895 34,895
Amount due to a director [Eff —ZEEFHE - 3,000 - - 3,000 3,000
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.6 3,688 - = 3,688 3,636
41,583 - - 41,583 41,531

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank borrowings and bank
deposits. As at 30 June 2017 the interest on bank
loans was mainly based on London Inter-bank Offered
Rate. The Group did not enter into any arrangement
to hedge cash flow interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should
the need arises. As at 30 June 2018, the bank loan is
fully settled. Accordingly, no interest rate risk related
to bank loan arises.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate deposits, bank balances and bank borrowings
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming that the amount of balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis
points (2017: 10 basis points) increase or decrease
represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points (2017: 10
basis points) higher or lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group's profit after tax for the
year ended 30 June 2018 would increase or decrease
by approximately HK$72,000 (2017: increase or
decrease by HK$73,000).

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate which will affect the
Group's financial results and its cash flows. Certain
trade receivables and bank balances of the Group are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group does not
engage in any foreign currency hedging instruments.
It is the Group's policy to manage foreign currency
risk through matching foreign currency income with
expense, and where exposure to foreign exchange is
anticipated, appropriate hedging instruments will be
used.

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
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—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

5, @I A #)
R EIERZERBEK (8)

Sm s ()

AEEXERUIINEGECEREERER
BERHERMZREENT

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BE =R+ BE =N

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET TrET TrETT

Euro B T 16,806 - 14,415 -
Hong Kong dollar BT 515 - 1,684 =
Pound Sterling g7 356 - 855 -
Macau Pataca R P 137 (121) 5,624 -
United States dollar X7 4,401 - 394 =
Sensitivity analysis B E DT

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign
currency risk from Euro and Pound Sterling. Under
the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
exposure on exchange rate fluctuation between Hong
Kong dollar and United States dollars is considered
insignificant by the Directors and therefore no
sensitivity analysis has been prepared.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The following table details the group entities’
sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 5%) increase and
decrease in Euro and Pound Sterling against each
group entity’'s functional currency. 5% (2017: 5%)
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
(2017: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. A positive
number below indicates an increase in profit before
taxation where Euro and Pound Sterling strengthen
5% (2017: 5%) against each group entity’s functional
currency. For a 5% (2017: 5%) weakening of Euro and
Pound Sterling against each group entity’s functional
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact
on the profit or loss.
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TERAMFAAEBEBHBR TR AE LS
SEHEB2NEEB ZEXR FARTHS%
—tEF 5% )ZHEEE5% (=T
—tF 5% ) NATEERPRNEEEEA
BREIINERBREAEAZSRELE B
REEEBEEYHIINEERABEAEESH 2T
o BEEDMEBFBAINEHEZ K&
E¥IEE  WAINEEREHES (ZT—+
F 5% )HAEFHEZHMBEENRAR - UTIE
BERENMIBTRRE S EEERINEEE
FEE% (ZE—+F:5% )G SHRIA
i ) _E FE o {1 BR TE&?E@%RK%.A‘%“UJ
BHEEE% (ZE—+tF:5%) A|@HIE
m%ﬁJzﬁﬂﬁrzifa&w

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—LF

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FET

Euro BT 840 721
Pound Sterling e 18 43

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis
is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The Directors consider the carrying amounts of
financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised

cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

EEERR BREDMILAREXREFIN
BEE [l By + T by A 4 4 B[R FR 3 T = BR4F

B o

TREEREREBEZATEE

EERRIMEHNAN GRS M BHRERIRZ
CREERAGBZREERELRAFEEM
=,
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6.
INFORMATION

(a)

Revenue

Revenue represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold and services provided
by the Group to external customers.

WHEARER AT HEEM
RAR RS 2 B W R UK IR -

The revenue of the Group comprises the AEBZWRZBETYEHE:
following:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from contracts with BB ISR 5 &R F165%
customers within the scope of HEANZEFE K=
HKFRS 15
Sales of systems including SHEZRS (BB RE) 86,547 92,737
software licensing
Rendering of services IR AR 75 27,771 26,270
System sales including software R #HE (B IERNIFEFER 114,318 119,007
_ Mecnsing end serfess E)
Leasing of system products = MEXRMER 22425 __ 21,847
136,743 140,854
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(b)

Segment information

The operating segments have been identified
on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies
conforming to HKFRSs, which are regularly
reviewed by the executive directors of the
Company, for the purpose of allocating resources
to segments and assessing their performance.
Three operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are identified as

follows:

J Sales of cultural - includes income from
products trading of cultural

products

o System sales - includes income from
including sales of systems
software including software
licensing and licensing and provision
services of related services

o Leasing of system - includes income from
products leasing of system

products

The accounting policies of the operating and
reportable segments are the same as the
Group’'s accounting policies described in note
3(b). Segment results represent the loss
before taxation recognised by each reportable
segment, excluding interest income, finance
costs, unallocated income and expenses such
as central administration costs and directors’
salaries. This is the measure reported to the
executive directors of the Company, the chief
operating decision maker, for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance.
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BEOBEDRBERETBMBREE
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HAWEARAFTRITES EHAEHN
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REBVIERELLFSREEHE
—ERERAIFRESHEESWAT

. HEX(E - BEXERES
Em ZHA

. ZRHE - BEEEER(E
(B ERIETER
ENGEE R RRAARBE R 2
R LON)
&%)

. HEZSE - BEHEEZES
Em EmZHA

FERAHREDE S BRENTE

3(b) it 2 AN B & A EERARR - DA
FEESUREDBMER ZBEBA
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WEEIEER (&)
INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER (&

Information regarding the above segments is BALMHSBERZRMAT :

reported below:

System
sales
including
software
Sales of licensing  Leasing of
cultural and system
products services products Consolidated
REHE
(BRERH
HEX KT HEAR
Em REB%) Em &E
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-_Z-N\§XB=1H
LEE
REVENUE W 32
External and total revenue HIMNEE R B YR
Recognised at a point in time RE—FRHER - 86,547 = 86,547
Recognised over time e B e 22 - 27,171 22,425 50,196
- 114,318 22,425 136,743
RESULTS £
Segment result DEEE (1,637,348) 3,132 1,848  (1,632,368)
Interest income (note 7) FEBWA (H5E7) 17
Finance costs (note 8) BISEA (fT7£8) (308)
Unallocated expenses, net APERY -5 (12,096)
Loss before taxation BEAEE (1,644,601)
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6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(b)
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6. WEKkDB\ER (&)

Segment information (continued) (b) DEEHR (&)
System
sales
including
software
Sales of licensing Leasing of
cultural and system
products services products  Consolidated
ZMEE
(AR
HEX( AT HERH
7E R BR#) 7 e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET

Year ended 30 June 2017

BE-Z-tFERA=TH

LEE

REVENUE I 3
External and total revenue HINEE R B Y H = 119,007 21,847 140,854
RESULTS £
Segment result DEEE (1,740,595) (8,891) 3,045 (1,746,441
Interest income (note 7) FEWA (He7) 180
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries &M B A2 Wz

(note 11) (BizEn) 2,167
Finance costs (note 8) B (H1728) (146)
Unallocated expenses, net AOBRAS - FH (11,935)
Loss before taxation BREATEE (1,756,175)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 6. WakoBEER (@)
INFORMATION (continued)
(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEEHR (&)
System
sales
including
software
Sales of licensing  Leasing of
cultural and system
products services products Consolidated
ARHE
(BERH
B HERS
HEXLER R HR#) Em e
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET
Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-E-NEXA=1H
LEE
Amounts included in the A ESEEFHERZ
measure of segment 28
profit or loss:
Amortisation and depreciation BRERIE - 7117 1,390 8,507
Impairment losses recognised ~ FIEEFERZAMEEE
for inventories 1,634,615 - - 1,634,615
Impairment losses recognised Bt fE YR E L BR SR FTRERR
for other receivables wIEEE - 5,835 - 5,835
Year ended 30 June 2017 BE-Z—t§5xB=1H
tEE
Amounts included in the A ESEEFNHERZ
measure of segment S
profit or loss:
Amortisation and depreciation B RITE - 14,318 1,334 15,652
Impairment losses recognised — FEEAMER ZAMEERE
for inventories 1,740,108 - - 1,740,108
Impairment losses recognised  Fi R G RBEFER AR
for development costs BRZAEESE
for systems and networks - 14,650 - 14,650
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)
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(b) Segment information (continued) (b) DEER (&
No information about segment assets and HRZEEHMTAREHRETEEL
liabilities is presented as such information is not EIRREENETERD B RKRFT
regularly provided to the chief operating decision HBUEZINERAIFEERBE
maker for resource allocation and performance pa-¢ e
assessment purposes.
(c) Geographical information (c) HEER
The following table provides an analysis of the AEBHRIEEF REEMEHE S
Group's revenue and non-current assets by ZWERIERBDEEDTEINNT
location of customers and by location of assets *:
respectively:
Revenue Non-current assets
W= FRBEE
Year ended 30 June As at 30 June
BEZAA=1+HLEE RAB=+H
2018 2017 2018 2017
“E-N\NFE —ZT—+tF ZEB-NE —T—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TFET FET FET

People's Republic of China HZEARZEME ([HE])

(the “PRC"), including BERE RN

Hong Kong and Macau - - 93 "
Bl (EERERRER)

Europe (mainly United

Kingdom and Germany) 136,743 140,854 29,838 31,355

136,743 140,854 29,931 31,366

(d) Information about major customers (d FEEFZEH

No single customer contributed 10% or more to
the Group's revenue for the year ended 30 June
2017 and 2018.

BE_Z—tHER-_ZF-NFEXA
=tTRLESE YEE-FFPERA
EEWER10% A o

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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7. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 7 HMWRA -WEKkEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
Interest income L8 U A 171 180
Exchange gain, net [ 5 U =5 7% 58 697 227
Others i) 3,089 3,480
3,957 3,887

FINANCE COSTS B # A AN
2018 2017
—E-)N\#F —FT—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&ET
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZF L 308 146
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

GEMBRRME
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9. BREIAIESIE

2018 2017
—E-N\#F —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Loss before taxation has been arrived B ATE B2 K
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration (note 10(a)) EEMe (#iE1002)) 662 1,203
Staff costs excluding directors’ & B KA
remuneration (TEREEMNE) 72,091 69,800
Retirement benefit scheme BRIREFF BT
contributions other than directors (EERIN) 3,365 5,357
Total staff costs EE A B 76,118 76,360
Amortisation of development costs for Z 4% [ 48 4% B 3 A AN 2 8 6
systems and networks, included in (FFASEERARN)
cost of sales (note 16) (H1aE16) - 7.044
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BEREBZITE
equipment, included in general and (FTA—MRITHZEA)
administrative expenses (note 15) (K15E15) 8,507 8,608
Total amortisation and depreciation BERITERESE 8,507 15,652
Auditor’'s remuneration 1% 25 6 BN 3,571 2,531
Cost of inventories recognised as BERERAEY HZ2TFERKA
expense 60,708 60,792
Bad debts written off for S EWCE BRI 2 E R
trade receivables 411 -
Minimum lease payments paid under IRBEEHED N2z HE
operating leases in respect of: HENRBERE:
Rented premises HEME 3,049 1,892
Motor vehicles AE 2,517 2,834

T \FER

EREEHARAA
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors and chief executive’s
remuneration

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefit of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 30 June 2018

10. E5M2 HEESHFATIRSEEE
ABEZME

(a) EBRITHARZHE

RAEE B R AEH 538301 E KA A
(BBEEEFZER) BHIE230 67

E=ZHE 2 ERBEMNT

BE-_Z-NFEAA=tHLEE

Salaries Performance  Retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
H¢Rk RIERRB BHREHN
we HthEH  BHzRe THEIY ESMe4E
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEx FEx FEx FEx FEx
(note (xvi))
(Bigt(vi)
Executive directors HiTEES
Ms. Wong Man Winny (note ()) ~ E&& L (A1) - = = = -
Mr. Cheng Yang (note (i) BREE(H#0)) - - - - =
Mr. Liu Ka Lim (note (i) BRERAE (WA i) - = = = -
Ms. Lei Lei note (iv)) BERL(H#) = = = = -
Mr. Lin Xiang (note (iv)) WS (Wit ) = = = = -
Non-executive director FUTES
Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica (note (v)) H5IF &+ (#:2()) 271 = = = 277
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han WRELL (W)

(note (vi)) 28 28 - - 56
Mr. Leung Man Fai (note (vi)) DRBEE (K i) 87 = = = 87
Ms. Chung Sau Wai Ada ERERL (i)

(note (vii)) 17 - - - 17
Mr. Yang Rusheng (note (xiv)) BIERE (W) 5 = = = 5
Mr. Clayton Ip (notefxv)) ERERE (W) 120 = = = 120

634 28 - - 662
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’'s
remuneration (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2017

10.

REMBE®RRNE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

EEME BREFATREEEE
AEZENE #)

(a) EBRITHAEZZME (4

BE-_Z—+tHEANA=tHLEE

Salaries  Performance  Retirement
and related benefit Total
other incentive scheme directors’
Fees benefits payments  contributions  emoluments
ek HIfERR RN
e AR Ehe®s AR EEMeLR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET
(note (xvi))
(Bit(vi)
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Cheng Yang (note (i) BB EE (Hitl) 40 - - 3 43
Mr. Liu Ka Lim (note (i) BEREE (Wi i) 40 - - 3 43
Ms. Lei Lei (note (iv)) EEaL (Witiv) 12 - - 1 13
Mr. Lin Xiang (note (iv)) WEEE (Hitiv) 12 - = 1 13
Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok (note (xi)) B X8R (Hizt (i) - 28 - - 28
Mr. Lai Yat Kwong (note (xii)) RBEXEE (M) - 27 - = 27
Ms. Shirley Ha Suk Ling ERRRt
(note (xiii)) (M) - 396 208 9 613
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung (note (ix)) B R %% (M) 2 5 - - 7
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Frank Bleackley Frank Bleackley’t £
note (x)) (Witl) 50 49 - - 99
Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo (note (xiif)) ERHE (Wit i) 23 22 = = 45
Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han (note (vi)) 5% L (A1) 78 78 - - 156
Mr. Yang Rusheng (note (xiv)) BMERE (Hi#a)) 110 - - - 10
Mr. Clayton Ip (note(xv)) ERERE (B ) 6 - - - 6
373 605 208 17 1,203

—ETN\EEHR BRASEARAA
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive’s
remuneration (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Ms. Wong Man Winny was appointed as an
executive director and the Chairperson of the
board of directors (the “Board”) on 19 October
2017.

Mr. Cheng Yang had been appointed as an
executive director and the Chairperson of the
Board on 3 October 2016 and resigned on
15 August 2017

Mr. Liu Ka Lim was appointed as an executive
director on 3 October 2016.

Ms. Lei Lei and Mr. Lin Xiang had been appointed
as executive directors on 20 March 2017 and
resigned on 7 July 2017

Ms. To Yin Fong Cecilica was appointed as a non-
executive director on 7 July 2017.

Ms. Miranda Ho Mo Han resigned as an
independent non-executive director on
10 October 2017.

Mr. Leung Man Fai was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on
10 October 2017

Ms. Chung Sau Wai Ada was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 11 July
2017.

Mr. Leo Kan Kin Leung resigned as a non-
executive director on 3 October 2016.

Mr. Frank Bleackley retired as an independent
non-executive director on 20 March 2017.

Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok resigned as an executive
director and Chairperson of the Board on
30 September 2016.

Mr. Lai Yat Kwong resigned as an executive
director and the Acting Chief Executive Officer
of the Company on 3 October 2016 and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

Ms. Shirley Ha Shuk Ling and Prof. Julia Tsuei Jo
retired as an executive director and independent
non-executive director, respectively, on
13 December 2016.
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10. EEME EEFALTIRESEEE
AEZENE #)

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)

(a) Directors and chief executive's (a) ESRTHAZZHMNE (&8)

remuneration (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xiv)  Mr. Yang Rusheng had been appointed as as
an independent non-executive director on
13 December 2016 and resigned on 11 July 2017.

(xv)  Mr. Clayton Ip was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 14 June 2017

(xvi) The performance related incentive payment
is discretionary as recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company having
regard to the Group's financial results and the
performance of the Directors.

During the year, no emolument was paid
by the Group to any of the Directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or retirement from employment with the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. For the
year ended 30 June 2017, long service payment
amounted to HK$14,000 and HK$13,000 was
paid to Prof. Paul Kan Man Lok and Mr. Lai Yat
Kwong respectively. None of the Directors had
waived any emoluments in both years.

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to
or for the executive directors and non-executive
directors are generally emoluments paid or
receivable in respect of those persons’ other
services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Hiet: (&)

(xiv) BIERER-_T—XNFE+=-A+=
HEZEABYIFNTES WHRZ
ToLELAT—BBE-

(xv) ERERAER=ZZFT—tF~A+HE
HEZTABIIFRTES-

(xvi) BMIERABERCBESBROBILE -
MARRZHMEEEER Y23
AEBEYBEEREETHERERM
BiE -

F AN N BB M E E XA B
S ERAEMAREBEIRMALRE
B B 2 4% B ok R AT AN 5 B ok Bk B A
B-HEZZT—tF~A+=ALF
B mENEHRFERER X EED T
R ERA 14,0005 7T 213,000
B oMEFEN  BEESHESM
B o

RARTEERFFRTEFTINHET
ZHE RUREYEN -RERUZ
SALTREETERARARAMELR
Az EBAMZE MRS 2 ERE
Yo B & -
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION,
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’'S EMOLUMENTS

(continued)
(b) Employees with highest emoluments

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included no (2017: Nil) director of the Company.
The aggregate emoluments of the five (2017:
five) highest paid employees of the Group, not

ReHES

10. EEME -BeFATRSEERE
AEZEE #)

AEERLEBRRFALTEFREETS
(ZE—EHF:FR)ARFAEF-K
SEEARAE (ZT—tF HR)&%
2HEE (LHFARRER) 2HEE

being directors of the Company, are as follows: EER N
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FETT FE T
Salaries and other benefits FekEMBEF 5,486 4,990
Performance related BIERBER 2 RS
incentive payments 2,076 1,686
Retirement benefit RIRTEFIFT B3R
scheme contributions 672 494
8,234 7170
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, 10. EEME SEFALTRSEER
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST AEZME &)
EMOLUMENTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)
(b) Employees with highest emoluments (b) EEHEES (&
(continued)
Emoluments of five (2017: five) employees were hAE(ZE—tF:-AR)EEZHSE
within the following bands: NF T 5 E
Number of employees
EE A"
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—LtF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$1,000,000 - HK$1,500,000  1,000,000/% 7t — 1,500,000 7t 1 3
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7£ —2,000,0007% 7T 4 2
There were no amounts paid during the year FNAEERERRAZSESHAL
(2017: Nil) to the five highest paid employees MEAEB ZEBITRETHMALE
in connection with their retirement from MENRB(ZE—LF: &) -
employment with the Group, or inducement to
join.
11. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 1. HEMBRARZKEGS

On 30 August 2016, the Group disposed of its entire
interest in Vision Kingdom Limited and its subsidiary,
Smart (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited to
an independent third party for a consideration
of HK$3,000,000 fully satisfied by cash. The
consideration was received during the year ended 30
June 2016 and has been included as other payables as
at 30 June 2016.

As at 30 August 2016, the carrying amount of net
assets disposed of amounted to HK$833,000, mainly
representing deposits, bank balances and cash of
HK$863,000, other receivables of HK$58,000 and
other payables of HK$88,000. The net gain on disposal
amounted to HK$2,167,000.

R-E—ARFENA=+H AEELEER
Vision Kingdom Limited & X K B 2 RI{E &
CRPBFEERE)BERARZZHRE
F—BBLE=77  K{EA3,000,0004 7T
NREBHEN ZARBERBE_T—X
FRAZTHEFERE Wit AZT—R
FRNA=+TBZEMHAMRKIE-

R-TE—XRNENA=ZTBH BEHEFEE
2 R (B A833,0008 0 £ B A% R
17 % # & 33 £863,00078 7T ~ FE UK H 1 BR 7k
58,0007 7T & F& < H £t 5 TH88,000/% 7T © H
& 23 52,167000/8 T

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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12. INCOME TAX

12. FriEH

2018 2017
—E-N\E —FT—+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax: BV EAFR 18

— United Kingdom (“UK") — B ([%E])
corporate income tax EFSH (1,120) 272
— Germany corporate income tax —EBREREH 407 129
- Malaysia corporate income tax — R EMEH - 4
Income tax (credit)/expense Fris®i (&) T H (713) 405

UK corporate income tax is calculated at 19% (2017:
19%) on the estimated assessable profit derived from
UK.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Germany, the
Group is subjected to corporate income tax at 15%
(2017: 15%) on the estimated assessable profit of the
subsidiary which carried on business in Germany.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Malaysia, the
Group is subjected to corporate income tax at 24%
(2017: 24%) on the estimated assessable profit of the
subsidiary which carried on business in Malaysia.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2017:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits derived
from Hong Kong. There is no estimated assessable
profit for Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years.
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INCOME TAX (continued) 12. FR{EH (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the NEE 2RI G ? R E D 2 H W s
loss before taxation per the consolidated statement ZBRE R BB RN
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F TE—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Loss before taxation B Bt Bl &S 18 (1,644,601) (1,756,175)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of BB BFEHE16.5%
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) (ZE—tF:16.5%)
AEZHIA (271,359) (289,769)
Effect of different tax rates REAMRDEM R L E 2B A A
of subsidiaries operating in ZREBEZE
other jurisdiction 36 204
Tax effect of profit not subject to tax A E b 5] b [ 5 ZH AR A sk B
or exempted in other jurisdiction REBRENZ RB B (2,042) (2,320)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible HBERF B SR < F XX
for tax purposes 2B E 272,555 290,499
Utilisation of tax loss previously FRBTAER 2 RIBESE
not recognised (571) (569)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHIBEIB Z HETE 668 2,360
Income tax (credit)/expense FRAER (KR) X
for the year (713) 405
DIVIDENDS 13. BRE
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year HE-ZT—/\FAA=THLEFE HTFRK
ended 30 June 2018 nor has any dividend been %ﬁ%ﬁ%xﬁ%{ﬂﬂﬁi%: SRR W)
proposed since the end of reporting period (2017: Nil). REBREEARE (ZT—EF: &) -

T \FER

EREEHARAA
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14. LOSS PER SHARE 14. SREE

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
the owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

ADFVA AR 2 S RERERDRET
S AR

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FE T
Loss for the year AEEZEE (1,643,888) (1,756,580)
‘000 ‘000
Number of ordinary shares ZERRDEA TR T
(Restated)
(&%)
Weighted average number of FESREAEEZ
ordinary shares for the purpose of I 58 A% hN A 19 £k
basic loss per share 197,308 197,308

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for
the purposes of calculating basis loss per share for the
year ended 30 June 2018 has been adjusted, taking
into account the share consolidation occurred during
the year. The corresponding weighted average number
of ordinary shares for the year ended 30 June 2017
has been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the said
share consolidation.

Details of the share consolidation are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 30 June 2018
and 30 June 2017 were the same as the basic loss
per share as there were no potential ordinary shares
outstanding during both years.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M1 BMEREE
Plant and
machinery
and
Land and communications
buildings networks Total
RE - #a
T REF RBERS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Cost RAE
At 1 July 2016 RZE-—R"E+tHA—H 14,924 286,343 301,267
Currency realignment B X A B (242) (10,056) (10,298)
Additions AE - 7125 7125
Disposals & - (509) (509)
msodne ROB-LHAASTA  mew  ms 29788
Currency realignment B i & 502 7451 7953
Additions NE = 6,225 6,225
Written-off HisH = (14,364) (14,364)
Ane208 RoT-NERASEE s amats 297399
Depreciation and impairment HERAE
At 1 July 2016 RZFE-—R"E+tA—H 3,586 264,275 267,861
Currency realignment B X B (45) (9,804) (9,849)
Provided for the year FREE 191 8,417 8,608
Eliminated on disposals o B PR - (401) (401)
At 30 June 2017 RZZE—+4$,A=+H 3,732 262,487 266,219

— T \FFH

EREEHARAA
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% -BWERRE @)
(continued)

Plant and

machinery

and

Land and communications

buildings networks Total
B e
T REF RBERZ &t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FET
Currency realignment fE 5 A% 122 6,927 7049
Provided for the year FNEE 417 8,090 8,507
Written-off HsH - (14,307) (14,307)
e . AN RAY: s S il dmdr i
Carrying values RHE
At 30 June 2018 RZE-N\FE~A=Z1H 10,913 19,018 29,931
At 30 June 2017 RZE—+tF~A=1H 10,950 20,416 31,366
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The carrying values of the Group's REEBzMERESREE
property interests comprise: B
Freehold properties held outside REB AN R FF KA
Hong Kong HEEZME 10,885 10,892
Properties held outside Hong Kong REBIMNERESE KRB
under long leases (note) Az mE (HaE) 28 58
10,913 10,950
Note: Owner-occupied leasehold land is included in property, Kiat: AR T REFHS TR EME S  HE
plant and equipment as the allocations between the AEAZHEELHEFAYE BE KR
land and buildings elements cannot be made reliably. & o
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% -BEREE (@)
(continued)
The Group leased equipment to customers on AEFZREEHEFAHEREBETER R
operating lease terms. As at 30 June 2018, the —Z-)\FXA=TRH EBEXEZEEE
carrying value of such equipment, which was included 265,000%8 7T (=& — £ 4 : 524,000/ L)
in plant and machinery and communications networks, BEEARE  #EKBERAZA -
amounted to HK$265,000 (2017: HK$524,000).
As at 30 June 2018, property, plant and equipment RZZE—NEXNA=1TB KA&EB &
of the Group with aggregate carrying amounts BRE{E 410,886,000 L (& — &
of HK$10,886,000 (2017: HK$10,893,000) have 10,893,000 BL) 2 ¥ HWERZEEE
been pledged as securities for the defined benefit B 1ERETREBEEZNERRZ ER
retirement scheme of certain subsidiaries operated in BARKFEZERR -
UK.
DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS 16. A& RSB ERA
AND NETWORKS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost RS
At beginning of the year F4 4,641,101 4,641,108
Currency realignment PE H & - (7)
Atend of theyear F& 4,641,100 4,641,101
Amortisation and impairment B RORE
At beginning of the year F 1) 4,641,101 4,619,414
Currency realignment ME 3, 38 & - (7)
Provided for the year F R - 7,044
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE - 14,650
Atendoftheyear ______________ TR 4641101 4,641,101
Carrying value RREE
At end of the year F - -

T \FER

EREEHARAA
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16.

DEVELOPMENT COSTS FOR SYSTEMS
AND NETWORKS (continued)

Development costs for systems and networks include
all direct costs incurred in setting up and development
of systems and networks. The Group's development
costs for systems and networks are amortised over
the estimated economic useful lives of 1 year (2017: 1
to 2 years).

As at the end of the year ended 30 June 2017 the
directors of the Company reassessed the market
conditions in Asia Pacific region for the Group's
systems and networks and considered that they
were worse than previously expected. Further, no
revenue in Asia Pacific region was generated from
the system sales including software licensing and
services segment business. Management conducted
an impairment review of the Group's system sales
including software licensing and services segment
business in Asia Pacific region. The impairment
assessment took into account the fact that no further
development costs will be provided by the Group for
that segment after granting the independent third
parties non-executive rights to exploit and use the
design of certain of the Group's developed systems
and networks during the year ended 30 June 2016.
The recoverable amount based on the value in use was
estimated as zero and accordingly, full impairment loss
of HK$14,650,000 was recognised in profit or loss for
the year ended 30 June 2017.

As at 30 June 2018, the management of the
Group consider the zero recoverable amount of
the development costs for systems and networks
is appropriate and no reversal of impairment is
considered necessary.
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INVENTORIES 17. &
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials R 7,185 6,602
Work in progress & 5,170 5,786
Finished goods (notes) BIrK &h (H1aE) 11,808 1,645,933
24,163 1,658,321

Notes: Hiat -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Included in finished goods are cultural products,
including precious stones and antiques, of
HK$4,360,000 (2017: HK$1,638,975,000) which are
held for trading and resale in the ordinary course of
business.

As at 30 June 2018, all cultural products of the Group
were stored in a warehouse run by a worldwide
security solution company, which is an independent
third party to the Group (2017: 82% or 117 pieces
out of total 143 pieces of cultural products with the
carrying amount of HK$1,471,339,000 were stored in
museum operated by a company wholly-owned by Prof.
Paul Kan Man Lok, who was a substantial shareholder
of Champion up to 1 October 2016 and resigned as
director of the Company on 30 September 2016, on a
consignment basis).

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group
had engaged cultural product/jewellery experts to
perform an inspection on the inventories of cultural
products. According to these experts, downgradings
and reclassifications were required to be made on a
number of inventory items of cultural products. The
Group therefore engaged an independent valuer, Hilco
Global Greater China Limited, to reassess the current
market values of the inventories as at 30 June 2017
based on the findings of the cultural product/jewellery
experts concerning the grading and classification of the
cultural products. As a result of the assessment, the
management of the Group had determined that the net
realisable values of a number of the inventory items of
cultural products were lower than their costs and that
the shortfalls amounted to an aggregate amount of
HK$1,740,108,000. Accordingly, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$1,740,108,000 for the year
ended 30 June 2017

(i)

(iii)

B BEERAEEBBERREE
ERBEZILER(RBELEEAR
# 4l ) 4,360,000 T (ZF — Lt F:
1,638,975,000/ 7T ) ©

RZE—NENA=+B AEBZFRA
NtERER-—B2EXL2MEAAIRA
RAlzRE HAASEBYE=H (=%
—tF: 513Nt ER(REEAR
1,471,339,0007 7T ) 1 * 82% K 1171 Th #&
FEARNTFRABXLELE (R=2F—~
FTA-—ATHABEXZERE TR =-F
—ANFENA=Z+HBEARAES)2EHR
BZRAKEEZIEYEA) -

RREBE—_T—LFA=ZTHLEFEZ
REMBREMS ASEEEEWER
SERBERB N CEMTFEEITEE - IRIR
ZEERZER TEUBINELERTER
HEETRUNTAREFT D E ALt A&
@ B2 5598 (L E R Hilco Global Greater
China LimitediZBXWER EHERH
ZEXLERZBM RSB &R EfF
ER-_ZE—tEXNA=ZTHEZBEBEMHE
B A LT HER NEEEEEH T
AXICERGEEBZAERFEENE
A - iR EEREA $£321,740,108,00078 7T ©
L AEERBE_T—+tFA=+H
1F4F [ HERR R (B E5181,740,108,0007% 7T ©
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17. INVENTORIES (continued) 17. BE (&)

Notes: (continued) Biax: ()

152

(i)

(continued)

For the purpose of preparing the condensed
consolidated statement of assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2017, the Group had arranged another team
of cultural product and jewellery experts (the “Current
Experts”) from “China Cultural Heritage Information
and Consulting Center” (the “Consulting Center”)
being led by Ms. YANG Zhen Hua (#5E%) , to perform
a more detailed authentication on all of the cultural
products regarding their grading and classification.
According to the Current Experts, further downgradings
and reclassifications were required to be made on
the cultural products as compared to those as of 30
June 2017 The Consulting Center has arranged another
valuer, It R ME ZEEXFTE AR AR, to reassess
the current market values of the inventories as at 31
December 2017 based on their findings concerning the
grading and classification of the cultural products. As a
result of the final authentication report and evaluation
report, the management of the Group had determined
that their net realisable values were below their costs
and the shortfalls resulted in further impairment loss
of HK$1,633,877,000 being made for the six months
ended 31 December 2017.

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2018, the
Group engaged GEM Appraisal Center of Peking
University (It Rt K E A ZE F H L) (the “Appraisal
Center”) to conduct a scientific examination for 139
pieces of cultural products regarding their grading and
classification. According to the Appraisal Center, further
downgradings and reclassifications were required
to be made on the cultural products as compared to
those as of 30 June 2017 The management of the
Group has arranged the valuer, Jb 5T B &= B 1& &1
HABMR QA to reassess the current market values
of all 143 pieces of cultural products as at 30 June
2018 based on the findings of the Current Experts
and the Appraisal Center concerning the grading
and classification of 4 pieces and 139 pieces of the
cultural products respectively. As a result of the final
authentication report and evaluation report for the
valuation of the cultural products as at 30 June 2018,
the management of the Group had determined that
their net realisable values were below their costs
and the shortfalls resulted in further impairment loss,
of HK$1,634,615,000 (including impairment loss of
HK$1,633,877,000 recognised for the six months ended
31 December 2017) being made for the year ended 30
June 2018.

The Directors were of the view that, with the detailed
exercise performed by the Appraisal Center and
the valuer, the carrying amount net of impairment
recognised so far, reflected in the consolidated financial
statements, was the best estimate of the recoverable
amount of the cultural products.
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18. BWE Z R HALIRK

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —EFLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FETT FE T

Trade receivables (note (@) RUASEA (Hit) 24886 17,833

Other receivables (note (b)) FEWE L BR3R (B £ (b)) 14,088 18,095
Less: impairment provided OB FRRERAE (At (c))

for the year (note (c)) (5,835) -

... 8253 = 18095

32,809 35,928

Notes:

(a)

The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy
regarding its trade customers depending on their credit
worthiness, nature of services and products, industry
practice and condition of the market with credit period
ranging from 30 days to 180 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period is as follows:

Wit

AEEREBSRPEITHBZEEBR -
REREZER RERERIEE TR
RERTHBERTETEENTF0H=180
AZiEEH-

UWESEFARBEHTERREERTR
B2 BRE D250 -

2018 2017

—B-N% —E—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHAT FET

0 - 60 days 0-60H 22,603 16,178
61 - 90 days 61 -90H 1,896 1,600
91 - 180 days 91 - 180H 57 55
24,556 17,833

Before accepting any new customer, the Group's
finance and sales management team would assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and define
credit limits for the customers. Limits attributable to
customers are reviewed regularly with reference to
past settlement history. The Group's finance and sales
management team considers trade receivables that are
neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality as continuous repayments have been received.

RERERREF A NEBEZ % RHE
ERERETEEERPZEEER IR
EEFPZERE -BTEPZEEHEE2E
BE SRS EETEN AEPRHEAE
BRE AREZUBREEEEBRRA
AEHARRREZEREZRKEBREF

=}

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA

153



154

AR BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

18. BEWE S K HMERFN (

Notes: (continued) ftat: (&)
(a)  (continued) (a) (%)
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither 185k R AT ERE 2 B K E Sk
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired RZERATMAT
are as follows:
2018 2017
= % —F—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Neither past due nor impaired BR K 180 B 75 RO (E 22,603 16,178
Less than 1 month past due BELOR—M@EA 1,896 1,600
1 to 3 months past due wmE—==@A 57 55
1,953 1,655
24,556 17,833
(b)  The other receivables are unsecured, non-interest (b) FEREMBRREER R R RARE

bearing and refundable, and are expected to be
realised in the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

As at 30 June 2017 included in other receivables
was loan to an independent third party amounting to
HK$5,744,000. The loan was secured by a personal
guarantee provided by an independent third party and
interest bearing at 10% per annum.

As at 30 June 2018, the loan has been past due
and management of the Group was unsuccessful to
demand payment from the debtor. Management the
Group considered the chance to recover the receivable
amount would be low. Accordingly the amount was fully
impaired during the year ended 30 June 2018.

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries included in
other receivables amounting to HK$32,000 (2017: Nil)
are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(c)

The movement in the provision for impairment loss of
other receivables during the year is as follows:

REMBE®RRNE
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18. BIRE S REMBRFK (&)

st (&)

(c)

FRRKEMRFREBRBEZEIT

2018 2017

—EB-N\F —ET—+tF

HK$'000 HK$000

FET FET

At 1 July HntA—H = =
Impairment losses recognised TR (EEE 5,835 =
At 30 June RANA=+H 5,835 -

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(a)

The cash and cash equivalents comprise short-
term deposits with maturity of three months or
less and cash held by the Group.

Certain bank balances and cash of
HK$14,682,000 (2017: HK$14,560,000) were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"), which is not
freely convertible currency in the international
market. The exchange rate of RMB is determined
by the Government of the PRC and the
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
Government of the PRC.

19. RERBEEEE

(a)

RekBRESHBEIHAAR=EA
FARNZEBMERRAREEFE 2R

£ 2014,682,0008 T (=T — L&
14,560,000 70) 2 & TRITE R K
BETIAARE (TAR¥FE T
ARBWIEATRBERMISZEHRLIRZ
Bl \REEXRRPREBTETE B
FHEEHZELESEZHERTER
Z INEE B il BT AR BR o

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 19. RERBRCEEH &)
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) BREETHFELEEENLHER
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group's TRBVNAEBEEREFTHAELEE
major liabilities arising from financing activities, ZRABNEH (BREACRIERSE
including both cash and non-cash changes. B)HEe
Interest-
bearing Amount
Bank due to Other
borrowings a director payables
(Note 24) (Note 23) (Note) Total
Ef—%
FERTEE EERE EAHMOEX
(Hii24) (Hi223) (Hizt) @5t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT TET TET

sefleldlyeny R-B-tFLA-R ¢ oge o ahe -« B
Financing cash flow: MERSRE:
Currency realignment EH A% 93 - - 93
Transfer to other payables BE R HE AR - (3,000) 3,000 =
Loans from a director RE—REZZER = 4,780 = 4,780
Repayment to a director BE—RESHE - (600) - (600)
Repayment of bank borrowing BREIEE (3,729) - - (3,729)
Repayment of other payables EEEMNHEMIRN - - (1,180) (1,180)
Interest paid R (308) - - (308)
,,,,,,,,,,,,, E- . .
Finance costs BBRA
Interest expenses FIEZ 308 = = 308
,,,,,,, W - -
At 30 June 2018 R-E-NEXA=1+AH - 4,180 1,820 6,000
Note: Included in other payables is amount due to Mt BENEMEREERNMNES (B
previous director whom resigned on 15 August REZZ—tEFNA+HBAEE) K
2017. Ig o
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20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. BTE S REMIR
30 June 1 July 30 June
2018 2017 2017
—Z-\§ —E—tF Sl of 3
AB=1H +A—H ANAZ=TH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Trade payables R E SRR 7531 7487 7487
Other payables (note (i)) FERT B BRSR (A7320)) 25,860 27408 48,596
33,391 34,895 56,083
Note (i): Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries amounting to Mt - FEABRMEMBRRNENRRME AR

HK$2,000 (2017: Nil) included in other payables are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on
demand.

The aging analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period
is as follows:

HIE2,0008 C (T —+F T)AE
BT B RARERBEE-

ENESERNRENCERFRIEET AL
ZEREBDOMEFNMAT

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EF—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 — 60 days 0-60H 7,531 7487
The credit period for purchases of goods ranged from BEERZEEBHN TI0HE60H °

30 days to 60 days.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 15, receipts in
advance from customers of HK$21,034,000 (1 July
2017: HK$21,188,000) as of 30 June 2018 are included
in contract liabilities and disclosed in note 3(b).

Other payables mainly represent accruals for daily
operating expenses.

BRRMWNE BV EREERFE 155 @ &
2T - N\FEAA=-ZtHBKEFZE
21,034,000 T (ZE—t&FtHA—H:
21,188,000/ 7T ) B 5t A& K & &« W R KT
FE3(b) R -

N EMBEREERATEE R EH
e

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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21.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES BHEE
30 June 1 July 30 June
2018 2017 2017
—E-N\§ —E—tF T4
AB=1+H +tH—H ~NA=tH
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Receipts in advance from PR RS 2 B E P FE
customers for provision of services 21,034 21,188 -
Notes: Kiat -

(i) The Group has initially applied HKFRS 15 using the
cumulative effect method and adjusted the opening
balance at 1 July 2017.

(ii) Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, amounts previously
included as “Receipts in advance” under “Trade and
other payables” (note 20) were reclassified to contract

(i) AEBEERERBYELGXERES
B REEREGS RN T —+4F
+tA—BAERNES-

(i) HABBHBERSERFI6IREK TR
ARIMEENE S R EMRNR] (T
20)R T [FRMER] 2 RBEEH D EE

liabilities. aHBaE-
Movements in contract liabilities EHEBEE
2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July wtA—8 21,188
Currency realignment 534

Increase in contract liabilities as a result of billing
in advance of provision of services

Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
recognising revenue during the year that was
included in contract liabilities at the beginning of
the year

A 42 £ R 765 78 U 3R I8 T BB
AR B BN 50,001
ERFANBRTAFTEHNEED
Ka=mEMEHEaRERD

(50,689)

At 30 June

+A 21,034

The amount of billings in advance of performance
expected to be recognised as revenue after more
than one year is nil (2017: HK$525,000, which were
included under “trade and other payables”).

As at 30 June 2018, the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group's existing
contracts is HK$23,533,000. This amount would be
recognised as revenue when the services are provided
by the Group over the life of the contract to the
customers, which is expected to occur over the next
three years.
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BHz ARNFIBEERR —FEER R KRN
SHERT (ZZE—+5 52500087 5T A
[[ERE 5 REMBRR]) °

R-ZE-—NFENA=+H BEAEHEEAR
AT EREEHRTRAECHRZEREL
23,633,000 T o ItV EBE R ANEERE 4
FRAMZTFREREEWNER K B
R AR = FEREEE-
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23.

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

WARRANTY PROVISION 22. RERE
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —EFLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 July RntA—AH 1,073 1,055
Currency realignment M X, 38 & 31 44
Provided during the year F R 132 =
Utilised during the year R E A E) A - (26)
At 30 June W/NA=+H 1,236 1,073
The warranty provision represents the management'’s REBEEEEERBRAELRIENYTE
best estimate of the Group's liability under 12-month BREMZERME BE TRKR T =@
warranties granted on manufactured products, based AREHAMEAEBREEREED 2 KEFT
on prior experience and industry average for defective fio
products.
AMOUNT DUETO A DIRECTOR 23. BN —BEEME

The amount due to a director of the Company is
unsecured, non-interest bearing, have no fixed term of
repayment and is repayable on demand.

As at 30 June 2017 such a director owned 18.12%
indirect beneficiary interest in the Company. The
director resigned on 15 August 2017 and disposed of
all the shares held by him on 17 August 2017.

As at 30 June 2018, another director of the Company
owned 5.95% indirect beneficiary interest in the
Company.

RNAD R — &8 EREEER o
B EETEENRLAREREE-

RZZE—tFRXA=+H ZEFEEAR
A8 12% ZMER AR -ZEEFN_F
—tFNATHBEREAER _Z—LFNA
THHEERIBZAERD -

RZB-N\FRA=1TH ARAS—BE
EHEAARNAS.BN L EEX R AR -

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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24. BANK BORROWINGS 24. SRITEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EFLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FET
The interest bearing bank borrowings 7ZBE& Z st BRITEEWNT
are repayable as follows:
On demand or within one year BEM—FREE - 3,636
Less:amount due within one year R EBEE T2
shown under current liabilities R—FARBzE&8 - (3,636)
Amount due after one year R—FRIHA S5 - -
As at 30 June 2017 the bank loans bear variable R-ZZF—+tFNA=1H" RITERIK2.55
interest at 2.55% per annum. The bank loans are B2 FZBFRNEFE -BRTEREAE
unsecured. i
As at 30 June 2017 a corporate guarantee was RZZFE—+tFNA=1+H BERLEEF
provided by Champion to a bank in respect of BERTBERNRITIELARER - EBR
banking facilities granted to the Group. The corporate AERNRBE_Z - \FA=THILEE
guarantee was withdrawn during the year ended 30 B o
June 2018.
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES RIKEFIGTE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Retirement benefit contributions to the AIZARE Bz FREM KB =4~
Group's defined contribution scheme iR K4& F 7 991 2,112
Retirement benefit contributions to RAEE 2 EBEEAFTEIZT 2
the Group's defined benefit scheme BRI 2,374 3,262
3,365 5,374
(a) Defined contribution scheme (a) EREHFREHE
Certain subsidiaries of the Company participate ARRETETHBAR AR EE
in a retirement benefit scheme covering a portion B RARBHGFE - ZBHECEE
of their employees. The assets of the scheme are HAEB EESHBEE UFERH
held separately from those of the Group in funds BUSTAEG ZEESR -

under the control of independent trustees.

Commencing from December 2000, the Group
enrolled all eligible employees in Hong Kong
into a mandatory provident fund (the “MPF")
scheme. The retirement benefit cost of the MPF
scheme charged to the profit or loss represents
contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the MPF
scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in
the PRC are members of government-managed
retirement benefit scheme operated by the
respective local government in the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement
benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contributions.

During the year, the total expense recognised
in consolidated statement of profit or loss of
HK$991,000 (2017: HK$2,112,000) represents
contributions payable to these schemes by
the Group at rates specifies in the rules of the
schemes.

B-FTEF AR AEEAK
NEEZFMEAAREARMERS
mAHEATES ([REE 1) E R
RN 2 RS S BIRKERIRA
EARERRASHBRAREZ L
EYBR S AR 2 Ko

AEEBRFEZHBRFES AFEH
%mﬁﬁﬁ%%Zﬁﬁa@LW%ﬂ
HERE -AEEAUETEEOLZ
Iﬁ&$ﬁ%ﬂ%hﬂ#%¢ﬁﬁ
FoRZERAREES (FHIEEH

AN BB R KR F 5t 8l 2 M —
%%o

FAN REAEZXBERZH
¥ #£991,0008 T (=T — £ F:
2,112,000 7t ) AAE EiRZ% S5 &
RARTE 2 L RE T EEE 2 BB
K o
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operate a
self-administered and funded pension scheme
in the UK. The scheme provides defined pension
benefits with reference to the final salary of
the members at retirement and their length of
service. The scheme is closed to new members
since 1 January 2003.

The contributions which are determined by
a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial
valuations using the projected unit credit method
are charged to the profit or loss. Under the
scheme, the employees are entitled to a pension
between 1.67% and 2.50% of final salary for
each year of pensionable service at an age of 65.
No other post-retirement benefits are provided.
The most recent actuarial valuations of scheme
assets and the present value of the defined
benefit obligations were at 30 June 2018 and
were prepared by Actuary of Buck Consultants
Limited, Mr. Haroon Khan (FIA), Fellow of
the Institute and Faculty of Actuaries (“FIA")
(2017: Mr. Wes Jones (FIA)), for the accounting
reporting purpose. The assumptions which have
the most significant effect on the results of the
valuation are those relating to the rate of return
on investments and the rates of increase in
salaries, pensions and share dividends.

The funded pension scheme exposes the Group
to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest
rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.
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25. RIKERIFTE (&)

E R ET

ARABETETHERARERR
Y-EATERRERZRIKET
FHEl - tbEr Bl iR E BN RINE 2 &
AR BN e B AR 75 F H IR R R R KR
FoltztBlE —TT=F—HF 0
THREMKEZHE-

BEEEARBEME =FIREE
VEREETHEEE ZH/K DR
BaPHBR-BELE - EE —K
ARFESEFERNRARE €8
N T mEF£1.67%%E2.50%1% 0] &
BReZRBEHEFFE-AEH
37 f 12 f E A R K18 48 Al o 3L 2 5T
HEERTHEBANAERECZKEE
HEIR=ZE-N\FA=TH#
7730 A Actuary of Buck Consultants
Limited~ Haroon Khanst 4 (ZEE
HiiheErg s [REIBEMH
BEF®E8]) (ZT—LF: Wes
Jonesit £ (REBEMBEERS
B) )RE UAEETEFTREER
HEBEAERSEEVE 2 REDEB
KEDMERF BRRSERKEZ
Ft i@

HFRAKRAEEAEEEBHBEER
o R AR FIEER - RERAR
R & ER-



25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)
Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit
plan liability is calculated using a discount
rate determined by reference to high quality
corporate bond vyields; if the return on plan
asset is below this rate, it will create a plan
deficit. Currently the plan has relatively balanced
investment in equity securities, debt instruments
and real estates. Due to the long-term nature
of the plan liabilities, the trustee of the pension
fund considers it appropriate that a reasonable
portion of the plan assets should be invested in
equity securities and in real estate to leverage
the return generated by the fund.

Interest risk

A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase
the plan liability; however, this will be partially
offset by an increase in the return on the plan's
debt investments.

Longevity risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan
liability is calculated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants
both during and after their employment. An
increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan
liability is calculated by reference to the future
salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase
in the salary of the plan participants will increase
the plan’'s liability.
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25. RIRBRIFHE (2

(b)

i

ERREAET 8 (4
RE /@3

EHEEMNFEABZRENZZRE
BhXEH WS REBEE 2B K
B fF BB E 2 MBMERZL X - &
BEWETEBAL - %At E B AT A AR
HIBZBEAES BB TAREH
ERE ERNFEaEZRHMLE R
KRESZFEARRBEEEAER
DRENBRARB S REME  LE M
EeMESZ D HNESE -

HEmE

BEM R FRERIL I B E A
H i i 51 8 2 B 5% E [ 1% t8 A7 A
D -

RE/mE R

EHEBEAMFEABEZREN 2R
SHEENEXERREBBRE 2T
Ry BEMFAE-FE2EE TR
HIS g NG At B A fE -

HLme
EERAMFEHABEZREN 2R
SEEZRREFEFE Bt 5812
HEZHFSBMBE M EBE-
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)
Salary risk (continued)

The main actuarial assumptions used were as
follows:

25. BB B ()

(b)

)

EFBAETE (4
Femp (#)
Az EERABRIMT :

At At

30 June 2018 30 June 2017

R=-ZB-—N\F RZZT—LF

ANB=+H NA=1+8

Discount rate Ah 3R = 2.75% 2.55%
Expected rate of salary increase JEEEF S iR 3.25% 3.40%
Future pension increases KRR S FHIR 3.15% 3.20%

The actuarial valuation updated to 30 June
2018 by Mr. Haroon Khan (FIA) (2017: Mr. Wes
Jones (FIA)) showed that the market value of
the scheme assets was HK$357,824,000 (2017:
HK$361,767,000) and that the actuarial value of
these assets represented 93% (2017: 86%) of
the benefits that had accrued to members.

Under the recovery plan dated 31 May 2016,
the Group has agreed to contribute GBP340,000
per annum increasing at 4% on each 1 July
from 1 July 2018 into the plan. In addition, the
Scottish Limited Partnership for the plan has
been arranged such that the plan will receive
an income stream of GBP400,000 per annum
at 1 July 2018 increasing at 4% on each 1 July
thereafter. As at 30 June 2018, the duration of
the plan liability is 17 years (2017: 18 years).
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EEFREE) (ZET—+tF: Wes
Joneshi A (KRR BFEEMBPEE RS
B))EHE—_ZTE—N\FA=1+H
ZREEGFERS HEEEZTE
£357,824,0008 0 (=T — L&
361,767,000 T) Mz EEAEZBE
BEALHEESRESENZ93% (=
T—+F:86%)°

BEBHA-TE—"FRAA=1+—H
Z2iREFHE AEEREE=Z— N\
FtA-—HR REEtA—HM
Z &t 8)£ £340,000H 5 - 5 F 1 41
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 25. EARERIFHE (@)
(continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b) EEEREAIETE (&)
Amounts recognised in the consolidated REBEANEARFENGEERRE
statement of profit or loss and other tEEBRRFPERZESENAT -

comprehensive income in respect of the defined
benefit pension plans are as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —TE—+F
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FE T
Scheme administrative costs FTEITT B A (2,026) (1,562)
Net interest expense A B S FEE (348) (1,700)
Components of defined benefit REZEER 2 EREE
costs recognised in profit or B S 48 X 38 9
loss (included in general and (FTA—M &
administrative expenses) T ) (2,374) (3,262)
Remeasurement on the net defined E# 5t & T 5@ B & %58
benefit liability:
Return on plan assets (excluding & Z1& E 2 B3k
amounts included in net interest  (TBEEFTAF A
expense) X FHE 2 oH) (2,486) 36,163
Actuarial gains arising from changes A DR =R E B FrE £ 2
in demographic assumptions BE W 6,363 4,656
Actuarial gains/(losses) arising from Bf 7R 2% & &) FrEE &£ 2
changes in financial assumptions  #&E Uz (FHiE) 17,299 (41,749)
Actuarial gains arising from KEHRABRMELEZRE
experience adjustments g %5 15,274 722
Components of defined benefit REMEERE (ZH)
costs recognised in other TR Z FE R AR AL A
comprehensive income/(expense) 4B 8 5 36,450 (208)
Total P 34,076 (3,470)
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 25. RIRBHIFTE (&)
(continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b) TEEEREAGFE (£)
The amount included in the consolidated AR LB 2 F &R AR A S A Em
statement of financial position arising from the EXZSRBEFAREVBARRLE
Group's obligations in respect of its defined E R INE
benefit pension plans is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Fair value of scheme assets FrEBEECAFEEE 357,824 361,767
Present value of funded obligations & & #&#& 2 IR & (385,598) (422,494)
Net liability arising from defined  EXEEFFAEMEEL 2
benefit obligation BEFH (27,774) (60,727)
The Group expects contribution of GBP740,000 AEEFEFHER T —HERFERERE
(equivalent to HK$7,666,000) will be made (2017: 18 F 51 8 4 2 740,000% & (HE R
Nil) to the defined benefit plans during the next 7,666,000 L) (ZT—LF: &) -
financial year.
Movements in the present value of the defined EREBAEEZREZSWOT
benefit obligation are as follows:
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Opening defined benefit obligation 4 ¥ & 8 & Fll & & 422,494 406,333
Currency realignment bE W B 10,214 (4,056)
Interest cost BB 10,670 11,389
Remeasurement (gains)/losses: EZHatE (W) BiE:
Actuarial gains arising A BEESREEZ
from changes in BE W &=
demographic assumptions (6,363) (4,656)
Actuarial (gains)/losses B BREEBMELE
arising from changes in BE (k=) BE
financial assumptions (17,299) 41,748
Actuarial gains arising from CHABRMEEZREE
experience adjustments & (15,274) (722)
Benefits paid Fr 1~ 48 F) (18,844) (27.542)
Closing defined benefit obligation 4 4% i£ B8 & Fl| & & 385,598 422,494
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 25. RAKEBERIFHE (&)
(continued)
(b) Defined benefit scheme (continued) (b) EZEEAFHEI (&)
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets FEEECAFEERESHOT

are as follows:

2018 2017
—B-N\F ==
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FE T
Opening fair value of plan assets  F st EEE 2 A FEE 361,767 348,512
Currency realignment PE H & 9,091 (3,492)
Interest income WA 10,322 9,688
Scheme administrative costs AT 8197 BUK AR (2,026) (1,562)
Return on plan assets (excluding HEEEZOR (B
amounts included in net interest  2EF AN BT H FEZ
expense) ) (2,486) 36,163
Benefits paid Fr < 48 F) (18,844) (27542)
Closing fair value of plan assets FHABBEEZRFEE 357,824 361,767
The fair value of the scheme assets at the end of EIEERRENEERZATER
the reporting period is analysed as follows: pal (N
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Equity instruments (Quoted) T HE(RE) 312,865 318,878
Debt instruments (Quoted) BEH LA (FRE) 34,880 33,828
Other assets HEmEE 10,079 9,061
357,824 361,767
The actual return on scheme assets was FT &% E 2 EF[E# /55,810,000 T
HK$5,810,000 (2017: HK$44,289,000). (ZZ—+1% :44,289,000/8 7T ) °
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(b)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

Significant actuarial assumptions for the
determination of the defined obligation are
discount rate and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on reasonably possible changes of the
respective assumptions occurring at the end
of the reporting period, while holding all other
assumptions constant.

If the discount rate is 25 basis points higher/
(lower), the defined benefit obligations
would decrease by HK$14,907,000/(increase
by HK$14,907,000) (2017: decrease by
HK$18,222,000/(increase by HK$18,222,000)).

If the expected salary growth increases/
(decreases) by 0.25%, the defined benefit
obligations would increase by HK$7,179,000/
(decrease by HK$7179,000) (2017: increase by
HK$8,141,000/(decrease by HK$8,141,000)).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may
not be representative of the actual change in
the defined benefit obligations as it is unlikely
that the change in assumptions would occur
in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the defined
benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit method at the end of the reporting
period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligations
liability recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

There was no change in the methods and
assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis from prior years.
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(c)

Forfeited contribution

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
has also joined a mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) for its employees in
Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent
trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the MPF Scheme at rates
specified in the rules. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions. Except for
voluntary contribution, no forfeited contribution
under the MPF Scheme is available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years.

For the retirement benefits of the Group's
qualifying employees in the PRC, the Group has
participated in the retirement benefits scheme
operated by the local municipal government of
Shenzhen. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of their payroll costs
to the scheme to fund the benefits. The
employees are entitled to retirement pension
calculated with reference to their basic salaries
on retirement and their length of services
in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the scheme is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the scheme.
Contributions to the scheme are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
scheme. No forfeited contribution under PRC
retirement benefit scheme is available to reduce
the confinement payable in future years.
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25. RARFEFIFHE) (50

(c)

2 R
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sraEl (MeEesall) -aEEst a8l
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(continued)

(c)

Forfeited contribution (continued)

For the retirement benefits of the Group's
qualifying employees in the UK, the Group
has participated in the retirement benefits
scheme operated by the global HR benefits and
human resource consulting firm authorised and
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
The employees are entitled to post retirement
cash commutation. Details of the scheme are set
out in note 3 and note 25(b) to the consolidated
financial statements. No forfeited contribution
under UK retirement benefit Scheme is available
to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

At 30 June 2018 and 2017, there were no
significant forfeited contributions which arose
upon employees leaving the schemes before
they are fully vested in the contributions and
which are available to reduce the contributions
payable by the Group in the future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. DEFERRED TAXATION 26.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
unused tax losses of approximately HK$84,469,000
(2017: HK$83,878,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. These tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 27.
(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company's
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out in

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

IESERIE

RBEEHEERT AEBERTHZH
TA 5 1B #)84,469,0008 T (=& — £
83,878,000 ) - Al H{EHEIH B 1& 2 &
Fle AR REETERT B 18 2 05 I HOR - 813 &
ERECHBEEE W EM BB ERH
A o

AR e

(a) MEHH 2B

BERAN - ANRBRAZERE DR
FUIRFREEBFIERN 32 -

note 32.
(b) Share capital (b) B
Number of Amount
shares
&t 21 B k]
‘000 HK$'000
Fig FET
Authorised share capital BREBEONIEST(ZE—1EF:
with par value of 178 T0) ZIETERA :
HK$0.1 (2017: HK$1) each:
Balance at 1 July 2016, RZZE—R"FtA—A8"
30 June 2017 and —E—tFXA=F+HR
1 July 2017 —E—t+FLtA-BZER 1,200,000 1,200,000
Share reorganisation AEMHE (Hat)
(note) 3,800,000 (700,000)
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZE-—N\FNA=THZ&# 5,000,000 500,000

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 27. BRARKf#E#E)

172

(b) Share capital (continued) (b) BRAs (%)
Number of Share Shares Capital
share capital premium reserve Total
RHOEE R RipEE N @t
‘000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
i FEz FEx FEx FEx
Issued and fully paid share FREE0. 1T
capital with par value of  (ZZ—t%: 1) #)
HK$0.1 BEIRBRRE:
(2017: HK$1) each:
Balance at 1 July 2016, HR=F—~F+tA—A:
30 June 2017 and “2—+EXAZTAK
1 July 2017 “E-+ELA-BZES 986,538 986,538 795,357 - 1,781,895
Capital reorganisation RAREA (f)
(note) (789,230) (966,807) = 966,807 -
Balance at 30 June 2018 RZZT—N\F
NAZTHZ &R 197,308 19,731 795,357 966,807 1,781,895

Note:
Capital reorganisation

On 10 April 2018, the Company implemented
the capital reorganisation, pursuant to a special
resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company at the adjourned annual general
meeting of the Company held on 29 January
2018, details are set out as below:

I share consolidation of every five issued
and unissued share of the Company with
par value of HK$1.0 each was consolidated
into one consolidated share with par value
of HK$5 each;

Il (i) the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced through a cancellation of
the paid-up capital of the Company to
the extent of HK$4.9 on each of the
consolidated share of the Company such
that the par value of each consolidated
share of the Company was reduced from
HK$5 to HK$0.10 (“New Share”); and
(ii) any fractional consolidated share in
the issued share capital of the Company
arising from the share consolidation was
cancelled; and

1. the authorised share capital of
the Company was increased to
HK$500,000,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 New Shares.
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27. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Reserves

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in share premium account
are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the amount
arising from the reduction of the nominal
amount of the shares of the Company (after
the consolidation of 5 Ordinary shares of
HK$1 each into 1 shares in 2018) of HK$5
each by cancelling the paid up capital to
the extent of HK$4.9 each share of the
Company in 2018. The capital reserve
is available for distribution under the
Companies Law of Cayman Islands.

Translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve
comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3.

Special reserve

The special reserve represents the
difference between (i) the book values
of the underlying net assets of certain
subsidiaries at the acquisition date together
with the capitalisation of a shareholders’
loan and (ii) the nominal amount of
the Company's shares issued for the
acquisition. The special reserve is available
for distribution under the Companies Law
of Cayman lIslands.

27. BARGHE

(c) f#f&

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

KRG EE

EhEBERzZERAXFESES
RAVEEE -REFSHEQA
EBRDEERZEST DR T
ARRBRR - HERBERZH D IR
BB’ ARBVABRIER
MNBBEBBIZT I G-

BEXG#E

EXRRBBHEARAR TN
FUAGKREE1E T 26K &8
& Bt R BRETTI G & HH1& -
NEHEARAT A BRER
4.9% 7T 3[R BB AN X 7] & B
BIEZBPEEMEEZ SR -
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Each of the Company and Champion has a share
option scheme under which eligible persons, including
directors of the Company, Champion or any of their
respective subsidiaries, may be granted options to
subscribe for shares of the Company and Champion
respectively.

(a)

The Company

On 30 November 2012, the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “scheme”). The
purpose of the Scheme was to attract and to
retain quality personnel and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of the Group. Under the Scheme,
the directors may grant options to any eligible
persons of the Group, including directors,
employees or consultants of the Company, its
subsidiaries or affiliates or any discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include the
aforesaid persons or a company beneficially
owned by the aforesaid persons as well as
customers, suppliers or advisers of the Group, to
subscribe for shares of the Company. An option
granted is exercisable at any time for a period
determined by the Directors which should not
be more than ten years from the date of grant,
where the acceptance date should not be later
than 21 days after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to
adjustment as provided therein) of the option
granted under the Scheme is equal to the
highest of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price per share as stated in the daily
qguotation sheet of the Exchange on the date of
grant, which must be a business day; and (iii)
the average closing price per share as stated in
the daily quotation sheet of the Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which the options may be granted
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date
of approval of the Scheme. The total maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any one grantee in any 12-month
period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue on the last date
of such 12-month period, without prior approval
from the Company's shareholders. The Scheme
will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from 30 November 2012. No option
under the Scheme has been granted since the
adoption of such scheme.
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28. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b)

Champion

On 30 November 2012, Champion adopted a
share option scheme (the “Champion option
scheme”). The purpose of the Champion Option
Scheme was to attract and to retain quality
personnel and other persons and to provide them
with incentive to contribute to the business
and operation of Champion and its subsidiaries
(the “Champion Group”). Under the Champion
Option Scheme, the directors of Champion
might grant options to any directors, employees
or consultants of Champion, its subsidiaries
or affiliates or any discretionary trust whose
discretionary objects included the aforesaid
persons or a company beneficially owned by
the aforesaid persons as well as customers,
suppliers or advisors of the Champion Group,
to subscribe for shares of Champion. An option
granted by Champion was exercisable at any
time for a period determined by the directors
of Champion which should not be more than
ten years from the date of grant, where the
acceptance date should not be later than 21 days
after the date of offer.

The exercise price per share (subject to
adjustment as provided therein) of the option
granted under the Champion Option Scheme
is equal to the highest of (i) the nominal value
of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be
a business day; and (iii) the average closing
price per share as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which
the options may be granted under the Champion
Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of Champion at the date
of approval of the Champion Option Scheme.
The total maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
share options must not exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of Champion from time to
time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any one grantee in
any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed
1% of the shares of Champion in issue on the
last date of such 12-month period, without prior
approval from Champion’s shareholders. The
Champion Option Scheme will remain in force
for a period of 10 years commencing from 30
November 2012. No option has been granted
since the adoption of such scheme.
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29. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 29. ﬁﬂ-‘@@%fi
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities REBEERAER UBARAEEAZER
in the Group will be able to continue as a going 8 %’]M%ﬁf?ﬁ&aﬁ‘t%@ B BF 7N 35 B (R

concern while maximising the return to stakeholders BEHBRAZGEFHAFNEFNESE
through the optimisation of the debt and equity HoAREEZEERIKE FFE—HK
balance. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged from prior year.

AEBZERGERBTIEERAABRER
ABEERER EFERBEETRA &
BERRERN (RFTEIE) -

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank
borrowings, equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and retained profits/(accumulated losses).

The Directors review the capital structure on a bi-
annual basis. As part of this review, the Directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations

EELFENEREB -EREBHZ &
D EBEEEREANKRAREBRAER ZHE
R -REEEZE AEEREBETH
Wty R EERDIARBETHEREOREE

of the Directors, the Group will balance its overall T ATFEEBRBERERE-
capital structure through the new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or

the redemption of existing debt.

KEHERHE
REBFEREBEA

NI E TR NEE S IR E R Y EE
EZADAIEHAEEERM R RREEN

30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30.
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
future minimum lease payments payable under non-

cancellable operating leases in respect of rented HERBEHPBERAT
premises and motor vehicles which fall due as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F E—+ &
Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
T RETF RE THREF aE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET FET FET
Operating leases which R THIE B E R 2
expire: KEMRE:
Within one year —FR 1,519 2,733 691 2,103
In the second to fifth year BE_FEFRFN
inclusive (BEERME) 611 1,71 = 2,738
2,130 4,444 691 4,841

KERERZHEFPIN T —F=2R1F (=%
—tF: —FE2RF) MEEDE-FE=R
F(ZE2—tF: —FERF)2FHEE -

Leases are negotiated for terms of one to five years
(2017: one to five years) and rentals are fixed for terms
of one to five years (2017: one to five years).
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

31.

(continued)
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
contracted with lessees in respect of leasing of
premises and certain equipment which is included in
plant and machinery and communications networks,
which fall due as follows:

30.

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

EERE R

AEEESEBEA

R E MR ARERERAMERE T
EstARE #az kARG 2R ERMAP
ANAK HEBERMT

2018 2017

“F-NE

“T—tF

Plant and Plant and

machinery and
communications

machinery and
communications

Land and networks Land and networks

buildings BE He buildings BR HE

THRET REGRS THRET RiapfERs

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000

T TEr TET TET

Within one year —£R 140 14,097 134 11,786
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_FZFRER (BEEERE) 70 12,026 201 15,001
Over five years EFE - - - -
210 26,123 335 26,787

As at 30 June 2018, the Group has service and
equipment rental contract with customers amounting
to HK$49,656,000 (30 June 2017: HK$47429,000). As
at 30 June 2018, the future income to be generated
from these contracts with an aggregate amount of
HK$34,963,000 (30 June 2017: HK$34,091,000) have
been pledged as securities for the defined benefit
retirement scheme of certain subsidiaries operated in
UK.

RZZE—NFENA=+H AEEERFF]
SR &R E A 493£49,656,00078
T (ZFB—+E,XxA=+8:47429,000/8
L) RZZE—N\FEXNA=1TH 254545
¥ EE A B9 R SR UK A 48 8E34,963,000%8 T (=
T —+EXxA=+H:34,091,0008T) 2
EIEANEELENSE THEBARMNTE
& F R AR T B A IR & o

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 3. BEALRS
(i) During the year, the Group had the following (i) FR AEBHETEZHETTIIRS:
transactions with Champion:
2018 2017
—E-N\F T
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Nature of transactions REMEE
Fees paid by the Group to Champion 7N %5 B 3% AKX AN [A) 78 B S £+
for the provision of office premises P A EWE K&
and facilities, and management IARERBRE 2 ERA
services, on cost basis (note) (HaE) - 750
Fees paid by the Group to Champion ZN%= & A8 % % 1+ B B AR 75
for treasury services ZEHR - 638

—2— \FEH

EREEHARAA
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(i) During the year, the Group had the following
transactions with Champion: (continued)

Note: These transactions were carried out after
negotiation between the Group and Champion.
The fees paid for the provision of office premises
and facilities, and management services were
in accordance with the management agreement
entered into with Champion dated 20 December
1996, which was renewed on 5 January 2010.

(i)  As at 30 June 2017, a corporate guarantee was
provided by Champion to a bank in respect of
banking facilities granted to the Group. The
corporate guarantee was terminated during the
year ended 30 June 2018.

(iii)  The key management personnel of the Group
are the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals. The aggregate amount paid to them
was HK$8,896,000 (2017: HK$8,373,000), details
of which are set out in note 10.

(iv) On 5 December 2016, the Company (as the
borrower) and Mr. Cheng Yang (“Mr. Cheng")
(as the lender), a previous substantial
shareholder of Champion and a previous
director of the Company who subsequently
resigned on 15 August 2017 had entered into
a facility agreement, pursuant to which Mr.
Cheng agreed to lend the Company up to
HK$5,000,000 in aggregate principal amount
which was unsecured, non-interest bearing
and had no fixed term of repayment and was
repayable on demand (note 23). As at 30 June
2018, the amount due to Mr. Cheng included
in other payable amounting to HK$1,820,000,
was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The transaction contemplated under
the facility agreement constituted continuing
connected transaction is as defined in Chapter
14A of the Main Board Listing Rules. However,
this transaction is exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listing Rules as the transaction was on normal
commercial terms or better and no security over
the assets of the Company is granted in respect
of such financial assistance.

(v)  On 7 December 2017, the Company (as the
borrower) and Ms. Wong Man Winny (“Ms.
Wong") (as the lender), a substantial shareholder
of Champion and a director of the Company, had
entered into a facility agreement pursuant to
which Ms. Wong agreed to lend the Company up
to HK$4,180,000 in aggregate principle amount
which was unsecured, non-interest bearing
and had no fixed term of repayment and was
repayable on demand (note 23). The transaction
contemplated under the facility agreement
constituted continuing connected transaction
is as defined in Chapter 14A of the Main Board
Listing Rules. However, this transaction is
exempt from the disclosure requirements in
Chapter 14A of the Main Board Listings Rules as
the transaction was on normal commercial terms
or better and no security over the assets of the
Company is granted in respect of such financial
assistance.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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OF THE COMPANY

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

32. ARRBEBARRER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&ET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE W BT B A B R IE 56,622 1,478,931
Interests in subsidiaries NN NG = 21,886 211,868
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 78,508 1,690,799

Current assets RBEE
Other receivables 78 Ui EL A BR X 336 267
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG = 128,452
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries  F& U [F R M B A &7 5K IE 66 32
Cash and cash equivalents HekReER 2,945 12
3347 128,763
Current liabilities REEE

Other payables JE < L A BR K 4,410 2,163
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN NGIE € 4,972 1,474
Amount due to a director B —REEHRIA 4,180 3,000
Dividend payables FET AR B - 3
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 13562 = 6630
Net current (liabilities)/assets il (Aff) "#ZFE (10.215) 122,133
Net assets EEFE 68,293 1,812,932

Capital and reserves BRAREE
Share capital N 19,731 986,538
Reserves (note) e (i) 48,562 826,394
Total equity EmEE 68,293 1,812,932

The Company's statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 27 September 2018 and are signed on its

behalf by:

WONG MAN WINNY
B
Chairperson
FE

ARARZHBHRARER T —\NFNA
“ttEhE=eERRENE IAT
JIEERERERE:

LIU KA LIM
BER
Director
£

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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AR BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

32. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 32. ARRQRFIBARM R (2

OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: Movements of the Company's reserves during the

Hiit: ARBRAFERBEFEZ HEE

current and prior years are as follows: BEAR -
Share Capital Special  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve loss Total
K aE NG Rl RiEE &
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TEx TET FEx TET FET
At 1 July 2016 RZE-"E+tA—8 795,357 - 195,874 (344,239) 646,992
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AEERFI R 2 ENFLE
income for the year - - - 179,402 179,402
At 30 June 2017 and RZZ—+ 5 A=THR
1 July 2017 “2—+Ft+tA-H 795,357 - 195,874 (164,837) 826,3%4
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEEREERTAE
expense for the year - - - (1,744,639)  (1,744,639)
Capital reorganisation RAER - 966,807 - - 966,807
At 30 June 2018 R=B-NEXB=1H 795,357 966,807 195,874  (1,909,476) 48,562

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 33. FEHBAF
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 30 RZE—N\FEARAA=ZFTBEE=ZZE—LEFX
June 2018 and 30 June 2017 are as follows: A=+H ARASEEMB AR ZFBN
N
Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value

Place of incorporation/ share capital/ of issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company

HEREL/ BRARAEE/ RAAEECERS Principal activities
HEARER BEny ifEx RAmELH ITER

2018 2017 2018 2017

ZE-N\F =5 IR-0\E =5

Aspire Management Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBEAREE US$2,636,320  US§2,636,320 RERR
26363201 2,636,320% T

Bingo Profits Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding
ABRBARES USs1 Usst RERRK
E3p E3p
Financial Vantage Limited* Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of treasury services
EETES USs1 Uss1 R R
%7 %7
Kantone (UK) Limited United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
EE £5,500,000 £5,500,000 REZR

550000025  5,500,000%4

Keen Pacific Limited* Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of treasury services
ERGHS USs1 Uss1 RAHTRS
157 157
Kontone Development Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of treasury services
PRERARAA & HKS2 HKS2 RUEA TR
W% W%
M.C. Holdings Limited* Cayman Islands Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
REEE £5500,002  £5500,002 RERER

g2k gak
5,500,004 5,500,025

Multitone Electronica Limitada Brazil Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Distribution of communication
Ef R$300,000 R$300,000 systems and equipment
TR EER AHBEZRRRE
300,000E%& 300,000EER
Multitone Electronics PLC United Kingdom Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Investment holding, design
EE £3,830,107 £3,830,107 and manufacture of
Lk Lk communication
38301078  3,830,1074% systems and equipment
RERR T REEREZR
R&

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA 181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

—Z— \F /X A=+ H 30 JUNE 2018

33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 33. FEE AT (&)

Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value

182

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED

Place of incorporation/ share capital/ of issued share capital
Name of subsidiaries operations registered capital held by the Company
HEREL/ BRARAEE/ ALAEECERS Principal activities
WEARZE BEHY AR RAEELA ITER
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-\f B2t ZB-N\§f  ZEF-t%
Multitone Electronics Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Manufacture of communication
SRED MR285,000  MR285,000 systems and equipment
ERR EER EEREZRRRRE
285,000 285,000
SREET SREET
Multiton Elektronik GmbH Germany Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Distribution of communication
28 £1,022,584 £1,022,584 systems and equipment
ERR EER AHBEZGRRE
102258480 1,022,584817L
Pearl Delta Inc.* Samoa/Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of treasury services
BETHE/BA USs1 Uss1 RUSBIRE
157 157
Shenzhen Hengyu Science and PRC Registered Registered 100% 100%  Investment holding
Technology Company Limited* capital capital REER
BEHE () BRAR! RMB24,000,000  RMB24,000,000
AMARARE ZMEFARY
24,000,000 24,000,000t
Silverstrand Investments Limited*  Samoa Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEEDHE USs1 US$t RELRK
%7 %7
Success (Macao Commercial Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of consulting services,
Offshore) Limited il MOP100,000  MOP100,000 research and development,
0 (AFERBERE) R Rk and trading of cultural
BRAF Bk Bk products
100,0007 100,000 REBHRE BERREUR
BEXIER
Wollaston Limited* Samoa/Macau Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100%  Investment holding
BETER/ RN USs! Uss1 REzk
%7 %7
Zonal Care Incorporated* British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Ordinary 100% 100% Provision of treasury services
Macau US$2 US$2 REHBRE
ABEBRES /2N Lk Lk
VEI VI

ANNUAL REPORT 2018



GEMBRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.

34.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

4 Directly held by the Company.

i Wholly foreign owned enterprise for a term of 20 years
commencing 17 October 2003.

The subsidiary has been disposed of during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017 or at any
time during the year.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform to current year's presentation and to provide
comparative amounts in respect of items disclosed in
2017.

33.

34.

—ZT—-A\F X HA=+H 30JUNE 2018

EEHBAR S

* BARAEERA

# SIBBELE FHH_FTT=F1AH
TEREBFH=tTF-

" ZHBRRIERFALE -

EXRAIARBMB AR NERERREARFE
EXEREERVERBRAEEEEFES
REBZWBAR - EERR - M5 H b
BRARZHBE—#IH AESERBNIT
o

EHNBRARAR-_ZE—\EAA=Z+BR_-Z
—tF XA =+ B F AT RS EE A
BISES -

e B F

ETHRBFETHAE UNEEAFEZZE
PR W T FAREZHBRH
LR EHE -

—F-)\F5H FRAEEERAA
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MR

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

RESULTS ¥4
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-\Ff —E—+F ZE-RF —ZT-1Ff C—T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FHET FET FHET FHET
Revenue Iy & 136,743 140,854 2,090,426 2,544,174 2,720,286
(Loss)/profit from ordinary BREAAEER (BR)/
activities before taxation =R
(Loss)/profit from operating RTEMELBE 2 LS
activities excluding other 2% (B8B) /57
operating items (1,644,601) (1,741,525) 615,855 60,468 273,234
Other operating items Hi G & EE - (14,650) (633,604) (47,595) (268,474)
(Loss)/profit before taxation ~ BR%iA (&8) &7 (1,644,601) (1,756,175 (17.749) 12,873 4,760
Income tax credit/(expense) FEsiEe,/ (i) 713 (405) = (2,205) =
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (FR) &R (1,643,888)  (1,756,580) (17.749) 10,668 4,760
Attributable to: e :
Owners of the Company ADNRHEE A (1,643,888)  (1,756,580) (11,764) 8,927 2,148
Non-controlling interests EERBRRER - = (5,985) 1,741 2,612
(1,643,888) (1,756,580) (17.749) 10,668 4,760
Dividends & £ - - - - 15,133
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
At 30 June
RAB=1H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E ZET—+tF T F ZT-1f ZT-MmF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET FHET FHET FHET
Total assets BELE 158,529 1,801,716 3,661,067 3,692,025 3,443,636
Total liabilities BRESR 87,615 124,519 127270 227072 223,893
Shareholders' funds REES 70,914 1,677197 3,433,797 3,464,953 3,219,743
Equity attributable to owners KRGERANEGER 70,914 1,677,197 3,433,797 3,438,988 3,195,547
of the Company
Non-controlling interests FEEBRBE R ER - - - 25,965 24,196
70,914 1,677197 3,433,797 3,464,953 3,219,743

KANTONE HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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